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Investment Objective

Baronsmead VCT 3 is a tax efficient listed company which

aims to achieve long-term capital growth and generate

tax-free dividends for private investors.
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Company’s launch the average annual tax-free dividend
paid to shareholders has been 4 76p per ordinary share
(equivalent to a pre-tax return of 7 05p per ordmnary share
for a higher rate taxpayer) For shareholders who recerved
up front tax reliefs of 20 per cent, their returns would have
been even higher

Secondary market in the shares of
Baronsmead VCT 3

Shares can be bought and sold using a stockbroker, just
hke shares in any other listed company Qualifying
purchasers (individuals over the age of 18 and UK resident
for tax purposes) can receive VCT dvidends (including
capital distnbutions of realised gains on investments) that
are not subject to Income tax, and capital gains tax 1s not
payable on disposal of the VCT shares

There 15 no minimum time for which VCT shares bought in
the secondary market need to be held, and they can be
sold in the normal way The UK tax treatment of VCTs 15
on a first in first out basis and therefore tax advice should
be obtained before shareholders dispose of their shares
and also if they deferred Capital Gains Tax in respect of
new shares acquired pnor to 6 Apnl 2004

if you have sold or otherwise transferred all of your shares in Baronsmead VCT 3 plc, please forward this document and the
accompanying form of proxy as soon as possible to the purchaser ortransferee, orto the stockbroker, bankor other agentthrough
whom the sale or transier was, oris being, elected, for delivery to the purchaser or transferee




Financial Highlights

NAV per ordinary share increased to 127 94p before
0 deduction of dividends After payment of dividends
- o totalling 7 5p per ordinary share in the year to

31 December 2007, the NAV was 120 44p
o NAV per C share Increased to 107 15p before deduction
+ of dividends After dividends totalling 4p n the year, the
m 0 NAV was 103 15p
I 7 1 0/ NAV total return since launch in 2001

Dividendyield, tax-free to qualifying ordinary shareholders
o (gross equivalent yield for a higher rate taxpayeris 10 per
- o cent) based on 7 5p dividends paid divided by the mid

ordinary share price of 111 5p at the year end

Dividend history since launch for Ordinary and C Shareholders




Seven Year Summary

Baronsmead VCT 3 plc

Net asset value total return and share price total return since launch against the FTSE All-Share Index total return

Performance Record

C Share Ordinary Share

FTSE Combined
Totat Net Net asset Net asset All-Share total
net asset Share value Net asset Share value total expense

Year ended assets value pnce  totai return® value pnce  total return® return ratiot
31 December £m p p % p p % % %
2001 3 93 85 380 o1 21 8514 29
2002 32 94 85 855 105135 65 83 33
2003 33 87 15 900 112 65 79 56 31
2004 35 106 38 925 12564 8977 35
2005 56 9513 1000 10014 117 31 1005 144 77 109 56 35
2006 67 100 95 890 107 35 130 77 1165 169 27 127 91 34
2007 65 103 15 915 116 07 120 44 115 170 56 134.11 34

* Source F&C Asset Management plc based on bid prices

t As a percentage of average total shareholders funds (exduding performance fee}




Dividends Paid Since Launch

C Share Crdinary Share

Total Average

Revenue Capnal Revenue Capital annual Cumulative total annual

dwidend dwvidend diadend daadend dvidend dividends ddend

Year ended p P p p p p p
2001 230 - 230 230 230
2002 280 - 2 80 510 255
2003 220 200 420 930 310
2004 120 330 450 13 80 345
2005 200 350 550 19 30 386
2006 200 100 175 475 650 25 80 430
2007 1.55 2.45 230 520 750 3330 476

Cash Returned to Shareholders

The Board 15 also aware that shareholders are concerned that the onginal capital subscnbed into Baronsmead VCT 3 has been
maintained The table below shows the cash returned to shareholders dependent on their subscnption cost, including their income tax
reclaimed on subscrniption

Net Cumulatve
Subscniption Income tax cash divrdends Net annual Gross
prce reclaim nvested pard yield* yieldt
Year subscribed p p p p % %
200 100 200 800 333 59 88
2005 100 400 60 0 70 58 86

Note The cash returns could be higher for those shareholders who were able to defer a capital gain on subsenption and the net sum
invested may be less

*Net annual yield represents the cumulative dividends paid expressed as a percentage of the net cash invested
tThe gross equivalent yield if the dividends had been subject to higher rate taxation




Chairman’s Statement

Baronsmead VCT 3 remained steady during 2007 with value growth from the
unquoted portfolio offset by the fall in the AIM portion of the portfolio, particularly
exacerbated by the sharp fall in UK economic confidence in the second half of
2007 Fwe profitable unquoted company exits demonstrated the ability of the
private equity disciplines to generate significant uplfts in value

With ordinary share dividends paid of 7 5p, the dividend yield grew to 6 7 per cent,
which 1s tax-free to most ordinary shareholders The hope Is to sustain this across

Mark Cannon Brookes
Charrman

Results

In the year to 31 December 2007, the Net Asset Value {NAV)
per ordinary share increased by 0 9 per cent from 126 77p to
127 94p before deduction of dvidends Two intenim dividends
were paid in September (3p) and December 2007 {4 5p) per
ordinary share

The C share caprtal raised in the five month penod to 3 January
2006 was converted into ordinary shares on 28 January 2008
at a NAV of 103 15p which resulted in 8,564 new ordinary
shares being 1ssued for every 10,000 shares held Two intenm
dividends of 2p each were paid in September and December
2007 Since therr launch, the NAV total return for the C shares
to 31 December 2007 15 16 per cent

At 31 December 2007, the respective share pools held
different portfolios of companies, hence the difference in the
performance of the NAVs Over the last two years, as a result
of the ordinary share pool being fully invested, most of the
unquoted investments were allocated to the C share poel and
many of these have subsequently increased in value, such as
Fisher Qutdoor Leisure and Empire World Trade Additionally,
the newer AIM investments allocated to the C share pool have
been less affected by the market down turn This has impacted
the respective returns duning the course of the year

Long Term Performance

The two standard measurements for monitoning investment
performance are based erther on the NAV plus dvidends paid
(known as “NAV total return”) or the movement in share price
plus dvidends paid (known as “share pnce total return”) The
latter 15 particularly relevant to mvestors who buy in the
secondary market Other measures include dividend yield and
cash returned to shareholders These different measures of
performance are described below and most are stated before
the inclusion of VCT tax reliefs These reliefs were designed to
redress both the VCT constraints as well as the ugher risks
that relate to smaller unguoted and AIM-traded companies

NAV total return to ordmnary shareholders since launch in
January 2001 amounts to 71 per cent which represents an
annual compound growth rate of 8 0 per cent and 15 stated
net of all running costs

the enlarged ordinary share capital following the issue of approximately 22 milion
new ordinary shares in January 2008 on conversion of the C shares

Share price total return in the last five years has been 75 per
cent, which represents an annualised tax-free return of 12 per
cent This ranks Baronsmead VCT 3 as seventh out of 63 VCTs
(source Trustnet — 25 January 2008} over this pencd

The results set out above compare favourably with other VCTs
and fuller compansons have recently been facllitated by the
Assoqiation of Investment Companies (AIC) who publish
monthly data on their website, www theaic co uk

Dividends and yleld By 31 December 2007 dividends totalling
33 3p had been paid to founder shareholders over the last
seven years Based on the mid share price of 111 5p at the
period end, the dwidend yield 1s currently 6 7 per cent tax-free
for UK private investors The Board's intention 15 to sustain this
record In the medium term but s continuance will depend on
the level of profitable realisations and cannot be guaranteed

Cash returned to shareholders arises from dividends paid and
the rutial income 1ax rehef that qualifying shareholders can
retain beyond the inhal holding pencd For subscribers in
2001, they will have received 33 3p plus up to 20p initial
income tax relief while subscribers for C shares have recewved
7p dvidends and up to 40p income tax relief (as long as these
shares are retained for more than three years) The bid price
for the ordinary and C shares prior to conversion at

31 December 2007 were 110p and 90p respectively

The Portfolio

The portfolio increased to 72 mvestments with fifteen new
investments made and eleven investments fully realised dunng
the penod New investments totalled £7 6 mullion across three
new unquoted and twelve AIM-traded investees, much of
which was invested from the C share pool as the ordinary
share capital was relatively fully invested The split by value of
the portfolio 15 approximately 63 37 between unquoted and
AMAull tist investrments and the largest investments in each
category are 3 5 per cent and 2 3 per cent of NAV

Six VCT tests relating to the running of Baronsmead VCT 3
have to be, and were, met throughout the period to

31 December 2007 The most significant of these tests is the
need to ensure at least 70 per cent by value of its investments




15 invested in VCT qualifying investments At the period end,
over 75 per cent of the share capital raised (net of launch
costs) prior to 31 December 2005 was invested in such
Investments

The "‘directron of travel”” or relative health of portfolio
compantes 15 measured quarterly m terms of profitability as
well as other non-financial benchmarks At the penod end

83 per cent of the portfoho companies were reporting higher
or steady profits and few at this stage appear to be affected
by the credit crunch The analysis of the top ten investments
set out on pages 10 and 11 gives more detall about key
investments and four of these aspinng high-growth companies
have heen selected to llustrate the role played by the Manager
in thewr progress and how value 1s added for investees (see
summaries on pages 12 and 13)

The Manager’s report also comments specifically on the strong
performance of the unquoted portfolio as well as the down
rating across the AIM portfolio Investment sales totalled

£12 6 millon realising significant net profits of £7 3 million,
which represents a creditable muttiple on cost of 2 4 times

Making Further Investments in
Baronsmead VCT 3

The record of share price total returns and the avalability of
ISA-style tax rehefs illustrate some of the ments for UK private
investors of acquinng existing shares in Baronsmead V(T 3
The Manager sent a guide to all shareholders in September
2007 utled "How to acquire additional shares in the generalist
Baronsmead VCTs", which provides more information about
how to purchase or subscribe for more shares and how the
different VCT tax reliefs apply

Followang rewisions to VCT legislation in the Finance Acts 2006
and 2007 the detalled way in which new share capital can be
deployed has become clearer and as a consequence the Board
15 able to increase the financial planning opportunities avalable
to ordinary shareholders by offering them the ability to
subscribe for new "“top up’’ shares

In August 2007 top-up offers of up to €2 5 million
{approximately £1 7 million) were sent to ordinary and

C shareholders The offers closed on 24 September 2007 The
C share offer was over-subscribed by 4 2 per cent and the
ordinary share offer raised approximately £0 7 milion, leaving
the capacity to raise an addiional €1 5 milhion As a result, a
top-up offer to raise up to €1 5 million has been sent to the
enlarged group of crdinary shareholders on the share register
as at the date of this report Full terms and conditions of that
offer are contained in the offer document

In the year to 31 December 2007, the Dividend Reinvestment
Plan (DRIP) acquired a total of 655,715 ordinary shares for

391 ordinary shareholders (some 22 5 per cent) This scheme 15
now avallable to shareholders who previously held C shares
and allows shareholders to re-invest their dvidends in existing
ordinary shares via In the market Shares acquired through the
DRIP count towards an ndmdual’s annual hrmit for VCT
investment and qualifying investors benefit from tax-free

dwidends and capital gains However, no up-front income tax
relief 15 available on shares acquired through the DRIP The

C shareholders were sent the DRIP brochure and application
form following conversion of their C shares and these are
generally avallable f shareholders contact the Registrar

New Listing Regulation

Listed companies are now required to state thewr investment
policy in full and this is set out In the Report of the Directors
on pages 15 and 16 of this report In this way existing and
prospective shareholders can understand the investment
opportunity which the Company offers and identify how nisk
spreading 1s achieved The Board reviews the investment policy
on a regular basis to ensure that 1t remains appropnate in the
prevalling market conditions and a summary s set out on the
inside front cover

New Disclosure and Transparency rules were introduced
earlier in 2007 and as a result intenm management
statements will now be produced following the 31 March
and 30 September quarter ends The two statutory reports
and two quarterly fact sheets will continue to be published
by Baronsmead VCT 3 and sent direct to shareholders erther
electronically or by post, or published on the Company's
website, www baronsmeadwvct3 co uk

Annual General Meeting

We now have approximately 3,000 ordinary shareholders and
our task as a Board 1s to ensure that we meet and understand
your requirements | look forward to welcoming as many
shareholders as possible to the AGM on 19 March 2008 at

11 am followed by a presentation by ScnptSwitch, a provider
of prescription software for GPs, lunch and a shareholder
workshop fimishing by 230 pm

QOutlook

The UK stock market 1s currently anticipating more difficult
econormic conditions and further downgrades in the ratings of
smaller quoted companies are possible Unquoted companies
are lkely to be less affected but within both categones this
may present more propitious buying opportunities for which
Baronsmead VCT 3 has the necessary cash resources

There appears 10 be resilience in the trading of many of the
AM Investees, but in weaker markets the ratings of smaller
and less iquid companies are bound to suffer However the
existing portfolio appears healthy enough to sustain
performance from which the hope 15 to mantain the dividend
record

Mark Cannon Brookes
Chairman

28 January 2008




Manager’'s Review

David Thorp
Investment Manager

New Investment

Andrew Garside

Investrnent Manager

Prem Mohan Raj

Cheef Financial Officer Funds

Rhonda Nicoll

Company Secretary

The total portfolio grew to 72 companies after fifteen new investments, net of eleven realisations The new investments set out below totalled
£7 & millon, including three sizeable unquoted investments and twelve smaller AIM subscriptions averaging £234,000 Further financings are
within the total amount invested and were spread over eight other investees

Company Location Sector Activity Investment cost (£'000)
Unquoted investments

CableCom Networking Somerset IT Provider of network solutions 1,381
Occam*t Bath Business services Integrated data services 42
Quantix Nottingham IT Database services 1,194
ScriptSwitch Coventry IT Prescription software 1,167
Total Unquoted Investments 3,784
AiM-traded investments

Appian Technolegy* Buckinghamshire T Number plate recognrition products 52
Brulmes Holdings*t Stockton-on-Tees Business services Pub management systems 57
Claimar Care* Birmingham Healthcare Domicthary care 219
Cohortt Henley-on-Thames Business services Services to the defence ndustry 179
Concateno*t London Healthcare Drugs testing 72
Cranewaret Livingston T Software for US healthcare 179
EBTM Nottingham Consumer Online fashion retailer 244
Essentially Group Jersey Media Sports marketing 255
Ffastfill London IT Trading platform software provider 130
Fishworks* Bath Consumer Fishmongers and fish restaurants 46
IDOX* London IT Public sector software and services 320
INVU Northampton IT Document management software 35
Mission Marketing Group Londen Media Marketing services agency 190
Mount Engineering York Business services Thread adaptors and valves 385
Optimisa London Media Marketing services ang strategic consultancy 298
Plastics Capital London Business services Plastics products manufacturing 473
Research Nowt London Media Online market research 263
Tangent Communications London Business services Customssed promotional matenal 180
Tasty* London Consumer Restaurant operator 200
Total AiM-traded Investments 3,777
Total Investments 7.561
*Further round of financng  $Non-qualifying investments totalled £353,000 duning the year

There was strong value growth across the unquoted portfolio,
which increased in value by 29 per cent over the peniod Organic
growth was particularly evident in Crucible Group (credit
management), kidsunlimited (children’s daycare centres) and
Kafevend (hot dninks vending for small companies) ILS
{domicilary care} and SLR (UK and Amencan environmental
consultancy) achieved their growth with a combination of

acquisitions and favourable existing trading Investments made
in 2006 such as Fisher {cycle accessories distribution) and EWT
{top fruit distributors} continued on plan as did the three
ungquoted investments made dunng 2007 There was a full write-
off against the investments in Country Artists {resin collectibles)
while the Art Group (publisher of art content) has been down-
valued as 1t falled to meet its business plan




Following the first half year of steady progress and profitable
realisations, the share prices of the AM portfolio fell sharply in
the second half by 21 per cent overall, partly due to the
announced changes to capital gains tax legislation

Cash and gilts stayed at a healthy level, due in part to realisations
and in part to the proceeds of the 2005/06 C share offer warting
to be invested The intention will be to utilise these cash
resources to fund new unquoted and AiM investments, which
are anticipated to be better priced than previously The level of
new unquoted transactions was lower than expected in the year
although two delayed investments were subsequently completed
during January 2008

Realisations in 2007

The sales of Domantis, Martin Audio and Amencana were
reported at the interim stage and since then Boldon James and
RLA Media have been sold to QineteQ and Mission Marketing
Overall these five investments made between December 2002
and May 2005 showed exceptional growth After netting out the
write-off of Country Artists, the sales produced more than three
times their cost and this multiple 1s higher still, at four times, If
the earlier part sale of Americana is also taken into account

Since the year end, in January 2008, Hawksmere has also been
sold to Kaplan Financial Limited at 2 5 times the cost of
investment in December 2003 This investment had been held at
zero value until June 2006 but during the year under review
increased in value by some £1 0 milion as profitable trading
returned and accelerated

Realisations of £1 5 million, representing 1 5 times the original
cost from five AIM companies, reflected the high level of bid
actwvity and more buoyant ratings on AIM earlier in 2007 The
total sharehalding in Worthington Nicholls was sotd through the
market and, retrospectively, was well imed This sale provided a
realised profit of £744,000 for C shareholders In addition,
deferred proceeds of £35,000 were recewved on unguoted
investments reahised 1N prior periods

Investor Relations

Shareholders who acquired shares through the C share offer in
winter 2005/6 can permanently retain any VCT income tax relef
that they may have claimed if these shares are held for 3 years or
more from the date they were 1ssued Shareholders who acquired
shares in the two top-up offers in autumn 2007 can permanently
retain any VCT income tax relief that they may have claimed if
those shares are held for 5 years from the date they were i1ssued,
following the revisions made 1n the 2006 Finance Act

Shareholders are sent separate share certificates each time they
make an investment, which will help identify which shares are

acquired at different times On conversion, those C shareholders
who invested in the top-up offer will have receved two ordinary
share certificates to demarcate the shares acquired in winter
2005/06 and those acquired in autumn 2007 The annual
statement sent to individual shareholders in May / June each year
1s intended to help in this regard, as well as identifying that all
dwidends have been paid

Shareholders passed the resolution concerning electranic
commurications at the Annual General Meeting held on 17 April
2007 rollowing notification from the Registrars in August 2007,
935 shareholders elected to continue to receive paper copies of
the Company's shareholder communications and 265
shareholders wished to receve notification of the avallability of
the latest reports from the Company electronucally The 1,838
shareholders who did not respond are deemed to have given
their consent to receive postal notification of the avalability of
the latest communications online As a result, the Company will
save printing and postal costs of approximately 2,000 fewer
annual and intenm reports

Shareholders can obtain information about their shareholdings,
and have the ability to change their reqistered detalls such as
address and bank account detalls for dwvidend payments etc, by
registering with Computershare's Investor Service at the
following web site www computershare <o ukfinvestor Once
registered with Investor Centre, shareholders can also elect to
receive electromic communications by ticking the box which
selects “’Electronic Shareholder Commurications”

Qutlook

An uncertain economic environment and stock markets that
are trending downwards both provide a depressed backdrop
for prospects in 2008 The counter balance to this general
gloom 15 that the unquoted portfolio 1s currently exhibiting
resiient trading, as are many within the AM portion of the
portfolio

The investment mandate 1s long term so, where the Manager
percewves such value, the intention 1s to wart until sentiment
improves In the meantime 1t is still possible for well-managed
and well-positioned companies to become attractive take-over
targets It will be such profitable realisations that can fuel total
returns for Baronsmead VCT 3 and provide the reserves for the
continued payment of dividends

Good buying opportunities should also become more evident

Investment Manager
ISIS EP LLP

28 January 2008

Ordinary shares reahsations First investment Cost Proceeds Muluple
Year to 31 Decernber 2007 Date £000 £000 Return
Unquoted

Americana Sale to financial buyer August 2003 443 1,375 8 0*
Domantis Trade sale Apnl 2004 601 2491 41
RLA Group Trade sale April 2005 1,105 1,762 37*
Martin Audio Trade sale August 2003 786 2,668 35*
Boldon James Trade sale June 2005 562 1,668 31*
Country Artists Liguidation June 2004 448 - o1*
AM

Worthington Nicholls Full sale June 2006 27 86 32
Talarus Trade sale May 2005 250 700 28
IPT Holdings Part sale November 2004 114 226 20
Blooms of Bressingham Trade sale Apnl 2001 320 29 09
Polaron Trade sale March 2004 296 188 06
Medal Entertainment & Media Write off August 2002 227 - -
* indudes interest recerved




Investment Portfolio

Investment Classification as at 31 December 2007
(Combined investments of both ordinary shares and C shares)

Time Investments

By Sector Total Assets Held
Bouk cost Valuation
% of Equity % of Equity
Qrdinary C  Ordinary C held by held by
shares shares shares shares Total % of Net Baronsmead other
Comparny Nature of business £ 000 £'000 £ 000 £000 £'000 assets  VCT 3 ple funds*
Unguoted
Reaed & Mackay Business services 1,211 - 2,268 - 2,268 35 95 285
Independent Living Services  Healthcare 801 - 2,205 - 2,205 34 144 431
Kafevend Consurner markets 1,247 - 2,161 - 2,161 33 154 46 3
Fisher Qutdoor Leisure Consumer markets 100 1,323 152 2 004 2,156 33 105 314
Emgure World Trade Busingss services 120 1,177 196 1,925 2,11 33 71 214
kidsunhmited Busingss semices 481 - 1 856 - 1856 28 446 92
SCrptSwatch IT support services 326 841 484 1,250 1,734 27 72 215
The Crucible Group Business services 1032 - 1723 - 1,723 26 86 247
Hawksmere Business services 766 - 1680 - 1,680 26 105 271
SLR Holdings Business services 290 - 1,592 - 1,592 24 26 67
Cablecom Networking IT support services 385 996 385 996 1,381 21 106 317
Quantix Holdings IT support services 261 933 298 1,063 1,361 21 114 342
The Art Group Media 1,281 - 1339 - 1,339 21 70 180
Crew Clothing Consumer markets 59 873 81 1188 1,269 19 59 178
MLS IT support services 62 719 66 768 834 13 53 160
Xention Discovery Healthcare 650 - 673 - 673 10 30 19
Occam Business senvices 462 - 651 - 651 10 146 116
Green Issues Meda 98 399 124 498 622 10 95 285
Total unquoted 9,632 7,261 17,934 9,692 27,626 424
FTSE SmallCap
Vectura Group Healthcare mn - 860 - 860 13 05 09
Ardana Healthcare 619 - 227 - 227 04 08 06
Oxford BioMedica Healthcare 250 - 3 - 3 01 01 01
Total FTSE SmallCap 1,640 - 1,160 - 1,160 18




Book cost Valuation
Qrchinary C  Ordinary C % o‘;lgﬂi“gz% OLSI?:Iug;
shares shares shares shares Total % of Net Baronsmead other
Company Nature of business £000 £ 000 £7000 £ 000 £000 assets  VCT 3 plc tunds*
Quoted on AM
Jelf Group Business services 551 - 1,503 - 1,503 23 25 76
IDOX iT support services 920 - 1,080 - 1,080 17 28 48
Murgitroyd Group Business services 319 - 1,054 - 1,054 16 32 32
Claimar Care Healthcare 73 497 93 636 729 11 14 55
Beglyes Traynor Group Business services 283 - 708 - 708 11 09 26
Proactis Holdings IT support services 29 371 42 544 586 09 30 121
{oncateno Healthcare 38 359 45 501 547 08 05 20
Driver Group Business services 438 - 498 - 498 08 24 87
InterQuest Group Business services 310 - 478 - 478 07 19 56
Plastics Capital Business services 124 349 108 303 411 06 18 83
Huveaux Media 541 - 400 - 400 06 14 30
Brutines Holdings Business services 31 316 35 364 399 06 12 52
Adventis Group Media 281 - 374 - 374 06 24 61
Mount Engineering Business services 107 278 101 262 363 06 23 106
Sanderson Group IT support services 387 - 348 - 348 05 18 53
Prologic IT support services 310 - 331 - i 05 41 109
Optimisa Media a3 215 75 193 268 04 15 73
Research Now Media 69 194 65 183 248 04 03 12
EBTM Consumer markets 68 176 68 176 244 04 21 98
Colliers CRE Business services 470 - 241 - pLY) 04 09 18
Quadnetics Group Business services 296 - 240 - 240 04 07 16
Stagecoach Theatre Arts Consumer markets 419 - 239 - 239 04 46 46
Business Direct Group Business services 665 - 236 - 236 04 EL:] 71
Kiotech International Business services 12 188 14 230 133 04 17 106
Interactve Prospect Targeting  Business services 139 - 224 - 224 03 05 16
Essentially Group Media 71 184 62 160 222 03 14 83
Vero Software
(formerly V1 Group) IT support services 300 - 200 - 209 03 37 105
Autoclenz Holdings Consumer markets 80 320 42 166 208 03 31 92
Craneware IT support services 50 129 58 149 207 03 06 26
Cohort Business services a7 132 52 146 198 03 03 17
Appian Technology IT support services 56 246 36 160 196 03 28 85
Tasty Cansumer markets 52 188 43 152 195 03 0B 40
WIN IT support services 263 - 181 - 181 03 13 36
Tangent Communications Business services 38 142 36 137 173 03 0% 40
Mission Marketing Group Media 190 - 159 - 159 02 04 11
Air Music & Media Group Media 574 - 150 - 150 02 16 28
Xpertise Group Business services 296 - 148 - 148 02 24 41
FfastFill IT support services 36 94 34 87 21 02 05 24
Payzone {formerly Cardpoint)  Business services 88 - 103 - 103 02 01 01
Eg Solutions IT support services 375 - 97 - 97 01 31 11
Real Good Food Company Consumer markets 540 - 92 - 92 0t 06 17
Fishworks Consumer markets 174 - 70 - 70 01 10 3
Brainjuicer Media 3 47 4 63 67 01 04 15
MKM Group BuUSINess services 284 - 48 - 48 01 09 23
Unwverse Group IT support services 158 - 42 - 42 01 06 i5
Debtmatters Group Consumer markets 169 - 40 - 40 01 08 24
INVUY IT support services 10 25 10 25 a5 01 01 18
Cantono
{formerly Hamsard Group} 1T support services 375 - 25 - 25 00 a1 a4
Zoo Digital Group IT support senices 584 - 15 - 15 00 04 07
Capcon Holdings Business senices 137 - 6 - 3 00 17 34
Micap Healthcare 325 - 6 - [ 00 02 0s
Total AIM 12,238 4,450 10,369 4,627 14,996 230
Interest bearng secunties
UK Treasury 5 0% 07/03/08 562 7,622 563 7,636 8,199 125
Money Market OEIC 5,024 3,114 5,024 3,114 3,138 125
Total interest bearing secunities 5,586 10,736 5,587 10,750 16,337 250
Total investments 29,096 22,447 35,050 25,069 60,119 922
Net current assets less creditors due after 1 year 3,796 1,306 5,102 78
Net assets 38,8456 26,375 65,221 1000

A prowision of £nil has been made against unquoted investments as at 31 December 2007 (2006 ~ £574,000)

*QOther Funds managed by the same Invesiment Manager 1SIS EP LLP




Ten Largest Investments

The top ten investments by current value to 31 December 2007 illustrate the diversity and size of investee companies within the portfolho
This finanaial information 1s taken from publicly available information, which has been audited by the auditors of the investee companies

REED & MACKAY LIMITED London

First Investment November 2005
Cost £1,211,000
Valuation £2,268,000

Valuation Basis Discounted price eamings
Percentage of equityheld 9 5%

Reed & Mackay Limited 1s a provider of business travel
management services to professional services firms and corporates
£5 0 mifion was raised in November 2005 to fund a replacement
capital deal

Year ended 31 March

Sales

Profit belore tax
Retaned profit
Net assets

Taking customers around the world

2007 2006
£mihion £ million
108 94

28 26

23 20

34 82

www reedmac com

INDEPENDENT LIVING SERVICES LIMITED alloa

Flexible, responsive and accountable domiciliary care

Valuation Basis Discounted price earnings
Percentage of equityheld 15 4%

Kafevend Group Limited 15 a leading prowider of dninks vending
machines and consurnables to the SME market £5 miflion was
invested in October 2005 to fund a management buyout

Kafévend employs over 70 people and operates from seven sites
across the UK

First Investment September 2005

Cost. £801,000 Year ended 2006 2005

Valuation £2,205,000 30 September £mibon £ million

Valuation Basis Discounted price earnings Sales 68 63

Percentage of equityheld 14 4% Profit bet 0% 07

independent Lnving Services Limited (ILS) 1s one of the leading rofit before tax

providers of acute domicihary care to its local authonty customers, Retained profit 07 04

mainly based in East Scotland Net assets 20 12

ISIS first invested in ILS 1n September 2005 and, in Novermnber 2006,

supported s first acquisition, giving the enfarged group a strong

presence in the west of Scotland www ilsscotland com
KAFEVEND GROUP LIMITED crawley SME hot drinks vending
First Investment October 2005 Year ended 2006 2005

Cost £1,247,000

Valuation £2.161.000 30 September £milon £ million

Sales 121 108
Profit before tax 03 17
Retained profit(loss) 02 99
Net assets 15 13

www kafevend co uk

FISHER OUTDOOR HOLDINGS LIMITED st Albans

Supplying the biking industry

First Investment June 2006
Cost £1,423,000
Valuation £2,156,000

Valuation Basis Discounted price earnings
Percentage of equityheld 10 5%

Fisher Outdoor Holdings Limited has grown to be the strongest
name ini the supply of cycle accessones and components to the UK
cycle trade £5 6 muthon was invested to effect 8 management
buyout in June 2006 Fisher employs 80 staff distnbuting key
branded and own label products

Year ended 31 January 2007

£ milon
Sales 181
Profit before tax 25
Retained profit 21
Net assets 77

2006

£ millon
154

20

14

53

www fisheroutdoor co uk

First Investment August 2006
Cost £1,297,000
Valuation £2,121,000

Valuation Basis Discounted price earnings
Percentage of equityheld 7 1%

Empire World Trade Limited imports top-quality deciduous frutt,
primanly apples and pears, and has achieved leadership in terms of
quality and service In August 2006, £5 2 million was nvested to
effect a management buyout Ernpire sources and supphes fresh
produce to major supermarkets fike Tesco and Marks & Spencer

EMPIRE WORLD TRADE LIMITED spatding

Year ended 30 Apnl 2007

£ millkon
Sales 953
Profit before tax 39
Retained profit 28
Net assets 51

Keeping the UK eating an apple a day

2006

£ million
837
28

19

29

www empireworldtrade com




kidsunlimited wiimsiow

Sales and profits growth

First Investment June 2001 Year ended 30 April 2007 2006

Cost £481,000 £mithon £ millicn

Valuation £1,856,000 Sales 274 236

Valuation Basis Discounted price eamings

Percentage of equityheld 46% Loss before tax (e (20)

kidsunhmited 1s @ major UK provider of day care facilities for Retained loss ae 20

chuldren under five years old The company operates a combination Net habilities {51} {7 5)

of owned nursenes and those located within the workpface It

raised £4 95 rullion to fund expansion and a share reorganisation

Since nvestment i 2001, the number of places for children has

grown fram 2,077 to over 4,500 across 50 sites www ladsunlimited co uk
ScriptSwitch Limited coventry Prescription software
First Investment May 2007 Year ended 30 June 2007 2006

Cost £1,167,000 £miltion £ million

Valuation £1,734,000 Sales 214 03

Valuation Basis Discounted price earnings

Percentage of equity held 7 2% Profit/foss) before tax 09 (0 4)

ScriptSwitch Limited provides an innovative prescnibing software Retained profit/(loss) 07 ©4)

product to Pnmary Care Trusts ("PCTs’), which 1s then employed by Net assets/(habilities) 04 (03)

GFs in their surgenes  SciptSwatch is & unique medicines
management tool that enables PCTs to save milhons of pounds
from thewr drugs budgets

in May 2007, I51S completed the £9 @ million secondary buy-out of ScriptSwitch

www scrniptswitch com

THE CRUCIBLE GROUP LIMITED carshalton

First Investment May 2005
Cost £1,032,000
Valuation £1,723,000

Valuation Basis Discounted pnce earrungs
Percentage of equityheld 86%

The Crucrble Group Limited 15 a credit management and debt
coflection business working on behalf of financial services and
other commercial customers In May 2005 £4 million was rarsed for
a management buy-out

The Crucible Group collects debts for credit card companies ke
Barclays, MBNA and Egg as welf as utility companies such as
Vodafone, Tiscali and NTL

Year ended 30 Septermnber 2006

£million
Sales 80
Profit before tax o8
Retained profit 07
Net assets 28

Credit management services

2005

£ million
73

g8

07

21

www creditsolutions co uk

HAWKSMERE LIMITED London

Provider of professional training seminars and conferences

First Investment Decernber 2003 Year ended 31 December 2006 2005
Cost £766,000 Emillion £ million
Valuation £1,680,000 sales B8O 80
Valuation Basis Offer
Percentage of equityheld 105% Loss before tax (o) as
Hawksmere Lirited 15 a leading provider of professiona traming Retained loss oy (19
seminars and conferences in subjects ranging from business law to Net liabilities {32) (22}
PR and sentor management development Hawksmere also
operates outsourced traiming contracts for a range of partners
including Croner and the Royal Town Planning Institute
in December 2003 £6 milion was invested to fund a management
buy-out Hawksmere operates from an office in London and
currently employs 40 staff www hawksmere co uk
SLR HOLDINGS LIMITED Aylesbury Environmental consultancy
First Investment September 2004 Year ended 27 October 2006 2005
Cost £290,000 £milion £ million
Valuation £1,592,000 Sales 218 184
Valuation Basis Discounted price earnings
Percentage of equityheld 2 6% Profit Defore tax 27 19

Retained profit 17 11
SLR Holdings Limsted prowides high quakty environmental services to

Net assets 97 104

private and public sector clients throughout the UK and overseas
The company continues to expand and, foflowing the acqursition of
SEACOR in Canada in Septernber 2007, now employs 600 staff based
in 15 offices in the UK and 24 in North Amenica

www slrconsulting co uk
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Creating Shareholder Value

HOW ISIS REALISES VALUE FOR
THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
BARONSMEAD VCT 3 PLC

Baronsmead VCT 3 plc invests primarily In a
diverse portfolio of UK growth businesses,
whether unquoted or traded on AIM, run by
entrepreneunal managers It 1s the growth
aspirations of these compames and their track
record that make them above average and out
of the ordinary

The following four examples show how this
approach has led to an increase In the
investment value The ISIS selection critera
include

e Ability to become a market leader in therr
chosen niche

¢ Management teams who can delver
profitable and sustained growth

e Company can become a premium asset
attractive to multiple bidders on exit

ISIS seeks selective opportunities from its four
UK offices through a combination of corporate
finance adwvisers and direct approaches

For the unquoted investments the ISIS team
participates actively at Board level in the major
decsions settng the business plan and
development of the management team The
mntention I1s to build on the inival platform and
grow the business so that 1t can become an
attractive target able to be either sold or floated
in the medium term

Development of the
management team

kidsunlimited, Wilmslow

kidsunkmited has earned a reputation as leaders in top
quality, progressive childcare For over twenty years now
“we've been giving young children boundless opportu-
nities to learn through imagmation, creativity and play,
while offering parents peace of mind that comes from
knowing their children couldn’t be better cared for

kidsunimited 1s a prowder of day care faclties to
children up to the age of five years old operating more
than 50 sites through a combination of owned nurseries
and those located within the workplace

Since first investment in June 2001, the UK market for
daycare has changed markedly following rapid capacity
growth, heightened regulation and government supply
and demand initiatives, including the introduction of
childcare vouchers This has required the management
team working m conjunction with ISIS to continually
adapt the strategy of the business Unbowed by such
inftuences, turnover has grown almost three fold in the
six years to 30 April 2007 The growth has seen the
value of the investment increase 3 8 times over mitial
cost by 31 December 2007

www kidsunhrmited co uk




Building the
right strategy

JELF GROUP PLC, Yate
www elfgroup co uk

The Jelf Group s one of the leading
corporate consultancies in the South of
England and Wales with offices across
those regions As a full service
consultancy, businesses are advised across
a range of services including insurance,
healthcare, employee benefits, commercial
finance and wealth management

The Group has undertaken a series of
acquisitons and embraced a new
regulatory environment in which the FSA
oversees the general insurance, healthcare
and mortgage markets  In the four years to
30 September 2007, annual turnover has
grown from £8 5 million to £40 6 million

Since first investment by [5I1S in October
2004 on the AM flotation and
subsequently again in February 2006, the
combination of organic and acquisition
growth has increased the share price of
the investment tc 2 7 times the combined
cost On float, ISIS held the largest
institutional shareholding of 13 8%

FISHER OUTDOOR LEISURE, St Albans

With ongmns dating back to 1934, Fisher Outdoor
Leisure has grown with 3 generations of the Fisher
family to become one of the leading distnibutors of
bicycle parts and accessones to the UK's independent
bike dealers, retail chains and on-line retailers

Fisher's product range consists mamnly of branded
products, covering mast categories of the cycle parts
and accessories market Products are sourced from
suppliers all over the world and over 30 brands are
distnbuted by Fisher under exclusive distnbution
contracts

In 2006 ISIS backed the former Commercial Director,
Richard Allmark in a management buy out (SIS
introduced an experienced charman to the business
with highly relevant commercial expenence and assisted

Richard with recrutment of a Finance Director and Sales
Director With these new skills and expenence the
business 1s well placed to capitalise upon the growing
level of consumer interest and government support for
cycling as a healthy and ‘green’ mode of transport

Based on the level of current profitable trading, the
investment has been revalued to 1 5 times cost

www fisheroutdoor co uk

Exploiting the

market opportunity

SLR HOLDINGS, Aylesbury

SLR Holdings Limuted 1s a multi-disciphnary environmental consultancy which has achieved rapid growth over the last
12 years including organic growth of over 20% per annum in the five years to the end of 2006

The company provides high quality environmental services to private and public sector chients throughout the UK and
overseas The compar%( continues to expand and, following the acquisition of SEACOR in Canada in September 2007,
now employs 600 staff based in 15 offices in the UK and 24 in North America

Since the investment by ISIS in September 2004, the business has scaled considerably and at 31 December 2007, the
value of the initial investment 1s 4 1 times the cost This computation includes the 90% redemption of the investment
cost in September 2006 comprising the ISIS loan stock and interest and a sizeable unscheduled dividend

ISIS was attracted to the business by the strong management team, the broad range of techmcal skills and the ?rowmg
levels of demand for technical assistance in sectors that were increasingly in the public eye, and facing high levels of
scrutiny from government and regulators

www slrconsulting co uk
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Board of Directors

as at 31 December 2007

Andrew Karney

(age 65) was deputy chairman and a
shareholder of Language Line Limited in
which Baronsmead VCT 3, was an investor
He 1s chairman of Tin an anti-corruptron NGO
He was previously a director of The Guarcian
Media Group plc, Guardran News and Media
Limited, integrated Micro Products plc and a
number of unquoted companies He was a
founder director of Cable London pl¢ and an
executive director of Logica plc

Mark Cannon Brookes (Chairman)

{age 68) 15 a director of Smith & Wilhamson Investment Management The Smith and
Willlamson Group has £8 billion of investments under management He is chairman
of CG Asset Management Limited and 1s also a director of F&C UK Select Trust plc
and a number of other companies, mostly overseas

Gillian Nott

{age 62) was until March 1999 chief executive
of ProShare (UK) Lirmted She was a director
of the Finanoal Services Authenty for 6 years
to November 2004 Previously she was
responsible for the private equity portfolio at
BP and latterty has been a non-executive
director of investment trusts at Memill Lynch
and Martin Curre and 15 chairman of Witan
Pacific Investment Trust plc She is also
chairman of Baronsmead VCT plc and a
director of Baronsmead VCT 2 pk; and
recently she was appomnted deputy chairman
to the AIC

Robert Owen

(age 62) 15 a business consultant to
developing companies and a director of
Baronsmead VCT 4 plc Previously he was a
senior manager at Coutts and Co, responsible
for the overall running of the venture capital
investment portfolio

As a fully listed company, Baronsmead VCT 3 1s required to comply with the Combmed Code relating to its Corporate Governance
This Code requires the Company to be headed by an effective Board of Directors who lead and control the Company's affairs

The Directors of a VCT and investment managers are required under the listing and continuing obkgations of the London Stock
Exchange to have sufficent and satisfactory experience in the management of a portfolio of unquoted investments of the size and

type in which the VCT proposes to invest




Report of the Directors

Results and Dividends

The Directors submit the Seventh Report and Accounts of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2007

Ordinary Shares £000
Profit on ordinary activiies after taxation 302
intenm capital dwvidend of 2 1p per ordinary share

paid on 28 September 2007 (666)
Intenim revenue dvidend of 0 9p per ordinary share

paid on 28 September 2007 (285)

Second intenm capital dividend of 3 1p per ordinary
share paid on 28 December 2007

Second intenm revenue dwvidend of 1 4p per ordinary

(1,000)

share paid on 28 December 2007 (452)
C Shares £000
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 1,924
Interim capital dividend of 1 Op per C share

paid on 28 September 2007 (240)
Interim revenue dvidend of 1 Op per C share

pad on 28 September 2007 (240)
Second interim capital dwidend of 1 45p per

C Share paid on 28 December 2007 (371)
Second interim revenue dividend of 0 55p per

C share paid on 28 December 2007 (141)

Principal Activity and Status

The Company s registered as a Public bmited Company under
the Companies Act 1985 The Directors have managed and
intend to continue to manage the Company’s affairs in such a
manner as to comply with Section 274 of the Income Tax Act
2007 and the Company has receved full approval as a Venture
Capital Trust from HM Revenue & Customs for the year to

31 December 2006 A review of the Company's business during
the penod 1s contamned in the Charrman’s Statement and
Manager's Review

Business Review

The purpose of this review 15 to prowide shareholders with a
snapshot summary setting out the business objectives of the
Company, the Board's strategy to achieve those objectives, the
risks faced, the regulatory environment and the key performance
indicators {KPIs) used to measure performance

Strategy for achieving objectives

Baronsmead VCT 3 plc 1s a tax effictent company histed on The
London Stock Exchange

Investment Objective

The investment objective of the Company 1s to achieve long-term
capital growth and generate tax-free dwvidends for private
investors

Investment Policy
The Company's policy 1s to invest pnmarnly in a diverse portfolio
of UK growth businesses, whether unguoted or traded on AIM

Investments are made selectively across a range of sectors
companies that have the potential to grow and enhance therr
value

Investment securities

The Company invests in a range of secunrittes including, but not
limited to, ordinary and preference shares, loan stocks,
convertible securities, and fixed-interest securtties, as well as
cash Unquoted investments are usually structured as a
combination of ordinary shares and loan stocks, while AiM
investments are primarily held in ordinary shares Pending
investment in unquoted and AIM-traded securities, cash 1s
primarily held n an interest beanng money market open ended
investment company {OEIC) and UK gilts

UK companies

Investments are prmanly made in companes which are
substantially based in the UK, although many of these nvestees
will trade overseas The companies in which investments are made
must have no more than £15 million of gross assets at the time of
investment {or £7 million If the funds being invested were raised
after 5 Apnil 2006} to be classed as a VCT qualifying holding

VCT regulation

The investment policy 15 designed to ensure that the Company
continues to qualify and 1s approved as a VCT by HMRC
Amongst other conditions, the Company may not invest more
than 15 per cent of its investments in a single company and must
have at least 70 per cent by value of its imvestments throughout
the perod in shares or secunties comprised in Qualifying
Holdings, of which 30 per cent by value must be ordinary shares
which carry no preferential nghts In addition, it must have at
least 10 per cent by value of its total investments in any
Quahfying Cormpany n ordinary shares which carry no
preferential nghts

Asset mix

The Company aims to be at least 90 per cent invested in growth
businesses subject always to the quality of investment
opportunities and the timing of realisations Any un-invested
funds are held in cash and interest bearing securties It 15
intended that at least 75 per cent of any funds raised by the
Company will be invested tn VCT qualifying investments

Risk diversification and maximum exposures

Risk 15 spread by investing i a number of different businesses
within different industry sectors using a mixture of securities
The maxmum amount invested in any one company 15 imited
to £1 milllon 10 a fiscal year and generally no more than

£2 5 million, at cost, 15 iInvested in the same company The value

15
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of an indvidual investment 15 expected to increase over time as a
result of trading progress and a continuous assessment 15 made
of its surtabulity for sale

Investment style

Investments are selected in the expectation that the application
of private equity disciphnes, in¢luding an active management
style for unquoted companies, will enhance value and enable
profits to be realised from planned exits

Co-investment

The Company aims to invest in larger more mature unquoted
and AiM compantes and to achieve this it invests alongside the
other Baronsmead VCTs As such, at the time of initial
investment, the combined investment can currently total up to a
maximum of £6 5 milon for unguoted and £4 4 million for AIM
Investees Currently the Manager and 1ts executve members are
mandated to invest in unquoted companies alongside the
Company on terms which align the interests of shareholders and
the Manager

Borrowing powers

The Company's Articles permit borrowing to give a degree of
investrment flexibility The Company’s policy 1s t0 use borrowing
for short term hquidity purposes only

No maternial changes may be made to the Cempany’s mvestment
pohcy descnibed above without the pricr approval of
shareholders by the passing of an ordinary resolution

Management

The Board has delegated the management of the investment
portfolio to 1SIS EP LLP ("the Manager} The Manager also
provides or procures the provision of company secretanal,
administrative and custodian services to the Company

The Manager has adopted a “top-down, sector-dnven’ approach
to identifying and evaluating potential investment opportunities,
by assessing a forward view of firstly the business environment,
then the sector and finally the specific potential investment
opportunity Based on its research, the Manager has selected a
number of sectors that it believes will offer attractive growth
prospects and investment opportunsties  Diversification 1s also
achieved by spreading investments across different asset dasses
and making investments for a vanety of different pencds

The Manager’s Review on pages 6 and 7 provides a review
of the investment portfolio and of market conditions dunng
the year

Principal risks, risk management and regulatory
environment

The Board believes that the principal nsks faced by the

Company are

- Economic nsk — events such as an economic recession and
movernent in interest rates could affect smaller companies
valuations

- Loss of approval as a Venture Capial Trust — the Company
must comply with Section 274 of the Income Tax Act 2007
which allows 1t to be exempted from capital gains tax on
investment gains Any breach of these rules may lead to the

Company losing its approval as a VCT, qualifying
shareholders who have nat held their shares for the
designated holding penod having to repay the income tax
relief they obtained and future dividends paid by the
Company becoming subject to tax The Company would also
lose ts exemption from corporation tax on capital gains

- Investment and strategic — inappropnate strategy, poor asset
allocation or consistent weak stock selechion might lead to
under performance and poor returns to shareholders

- Regulatory — the Company 15 required to comply with the
Companies Act, the rules of the UK Listing Authonty and
United Kingdom Accounting Standards Breach of any of
these might lead to suspension of the Company's Stock
Exchange listing, financal penalties or a qualified audit
report

~ Reputational - inadequate or failed controls might result in
breaches of regulations or loss of shareholder trust

- Operational - fallure of the Manager's and administrator’s
accounting systems or disruption to their businesses might
lead to an inabiiity to provide accurate reporting and
monitonng

- Financial — inadequate controls might lead to
misappropriation of assets Inappropriate accounting policies
might lead to misreporting or breaches of regulations

- Market Risk — Investment in AiM-traded, PLUS-traded and
unquoted companies, by its nature, involves a higher degree
of risk than investment in companies traded on the main
market In particular, smaller companies often have mited
product hines, markets or financial resources and may be
dependent for their management on a smaller number of key
individuals In addition, the market for stock in smaller
companies 1s often less hquid than that for stock in larger
companies, bringing with 1t potential difficulties in acquinng,
valwng and disposing of such stock

— Liquidity Risk — The Company‘s investrnents may be difficult
to realse The fact that a share i1s traded on AIM does not
guarantee its liquidity The spread between the buying and
selling price of such shares may be wide and thus the pnce
used for valuation may not be achievable

The Board seeks to mitigate the internal nisks by setting policy,
regular revew of performance, enforcement of contractual
obhgations and monitonng progress and compliance In the
mrtigation and management of these risks, the Board apphes
rigorausly the principles detailed in the ‘Tumbull’ guidance
Details of the Company's internal controls are contained in the
Corporate Governance and internal Control sections on pages
1710 19

Performance and key performance indicators
(KPIs)
The Board expects the Manager to deliver a performance

which meets the twin objectives of achieving long term capital
growth and generating tax-free dvidends

Performance, measured by dndends paid 1o shareholders and
the change in NAV per share, 15 also measured agamnst the FTSE
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All-Share Total Return Index This index, as the widest measure
of UK quoted equities, has been adopted as an informal
benchmark investment performance, cash returmed to
shareholders and share price are also measured against the
Company's peer group of seven other generalist venture caprtal
trusts A review of the Company's performance during the
financial year, the position of the Company at the year end and
the outlook for the coming year 1s contamed within the
Charrman’s statement on pages 4 and 5

The Board assesses the performance of the Manager in meeting
the Company's objective against the primary KPIs hughlighted in
pages 1 to 3 of this report

Issue and Buy-Back of Shares
Ordinary shares

During the year the Company 1ssued 541,129 ordinary shares
and raised net proceeds of £680,000 The Company bought
back 450,000 ordinary shares during the year at a cost of
£526,000 to be held in Treasury, with a further 200,000 ordinary
shares bought back for cancellation at a cost of £233,000
Shares held in Treasury will not be sold at a discount wider than
the discount prevailing at the time the shares were inihally
bought back by the Company The Company holds 3,180,000
ordinary shares In Treasury, representing 9 9 per cent of the
Company’s 1ssued ordinary share capital as at 28 January 2008

Cshares

Dunng the year the Company 1ssued 1,570,559 C shares and
raised net proceeds of £1,696,000 No C shares were bought
back during the year

Directors
Biographies of the Directors are shown on page 14

Mrs G Nott and Mr R Owen, whose biographies appear on
page 14 retire by rotation at the seventh Annual General
Meeting of the Company and, being eligible, offers themselves
for re-election

In accordance with Listing Rule (LR) 15 2 13, the Company
should have no more than one Director who 15 also a Director
of anather company managed by ISIS EP LLP Transiional
provisions are n place for Venture Capital Trusts and the
Company must comply with LR 15 2 13 by 28 September 2010
Notwithstanding this, the Board has deaided that Mrs G Nott
who is a director of Baronsmead VCT 2 plc and Baronsmead
VCT plc and Mr R Owen who s a director of Baronsmead
VCT 4 plc wilt seek annual re-election Accordingly Mrs G Nott
and Mr R Owen will retire by rotation at the Annual General
Meeting of the Company and, being ehgible, will offer
themselves for re-election

The Board confirms that, following performance evaluations, the
performance of each of the Directors seeking re-election
continues to be effective and demonstrates commitment to the
role, and the Board believes that 1t 1s therefore in the best
interests of shareholders that these Directors be re-elected

The Directors who held office during the year, and their interests
in the ordinary and C shares of the Company, were

31 December 2007 31 December 2006

Ordinary € Ordinary C
10p shares 50p shares 10p shares 5Cp shares

Mark Cannon

Brookes 135,818 20,700 123,144 20,700
Andrew Karney 38,656 41,200 35049 41,200
Gillian Nott 16,597 10,350 16,597 10,350
Robert Owen 10,709 - 10,709 -
Total shares held 201,780 72,250 185,499 72,250

There have been no changes in the holdings of the Directors
between 31 December 2007 and 28 January 2008 OCn

28 January 2008, the C share holdings of Mark Cannon Brookes,
Andrew Karney and Gilhian Nott converted into 17,728 ordinary
shares, 35,284 ordinary shares and 8,864 ordinary shares
respectively This brings their total holdings to  Mark Cannon
Brookes — 153,546 ordinary shares, Andrew Karney — 73,940
ordinary shares, Gillian Nott — 25,461 ordinary shares

No Director has a service contract with the Company

The Directors who held office at the date of approval of this
Directors’ Report confirm that, so far as they are each aware,
there 1s no relevant audrt mformation of which the Company’s
auditors are unaware, and each Director has taken all the steps
that they ought to have taken as a Director to make themselves
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the
Company's auditors are aware of that information

Corporate Governance

Arrangements in respect of corporate governance, approprate
to a Venture Capital Trust, have been made by the Board The
Board has considered the prinaples and recommendations of the
Associatron of Investment Companies’ Code of Corporate
Governance issued in May 2007 (*AlC Code’) by reference to the
AIC Corporate Governance Guide for Investrnent Companies
(‘AIC Guide’) The AIC Code, as explained by the AIC Guide,
addresses all the principles set out in Sectrion 1 of the Combined
Code on Corporate Governance issued by the Financial
Reporting Counal in July 2003 {the Combuned Code’), as well
as setting out additienal principles and recommendations on
issues which are of specific relevance to the Company

The Board considers that reporting against the principles and
recommendations of the AIC Code, and by reference to the
AIC Guide (which incorporates the Combined Code) will provide
better information to shareholders

Except as disclosed below, the Company complied throughout
the year with the recommendations of the AIC Code and the
relevant provisions of Section 1 of the Combined Code Since all
the Directors are non-executive the provisions of the Combined
Code 1n respect of the role of the chief executive are not relevant
to the Company and, likewse, the provisions of the Combined
Code relating to Directors’ remuneration are not relevant
except n so far as they relate specfically to non-executive
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Directors For the reasons set out in the AIC Guide, and in the
preamble to the Combined Code, the Board considers that these
prowisions are not relevant to the Company, being an externally
managed Venture Capital Trust The Company has therefore not
reported further in respect of these prowvisions

In view of the requirement in the Articles of Association that all
Directors retire by rotation, the Board considers that it 1s not
appropriate for the Directors to be appointed for a speafied term
as recommended by principle 3 of the AIC Code and provision
A 7 2 of the Combined Code However, the Board has agreed
that each Director will retire and, if appropriate, seek re-election
after each three years’ service, and annually after serving on the
Board for more than nine years

The Board consists solely of non-executive Directors of which
Mark Cannon Brookes 1s Chairman and Andrew Karney 1s Senior
Independent Director All Directors are considered by the Board
to be independent of the Company's Manager New Directors
will receve an induction from the Manager on joining the Board,
and all Directors receive other relevant training as necessary

Gillan Nott 1s chairman of Baronsmead VCT plc and 15 2
director of Baronsmead VCT 2 plc Robert Owen is a director of
Baronsmead VCT 4 plc The Board does not consider that a
Director’'s tenure reduces his ability to act independently The
Board believes that, as a whole, it compnises an appropriate
balance of skills, experience and tenure It also believes that
each Director 15 independent in character and judgement and
that there are no relationships or arcumstances which are likely
to affect the judgement of any Director The Company has no
executive Directors or employees

A management agreement between the Company and its
Manager, ISIS EP LLP, sets out the matters over which the
Manager has authonty and the imits above which Board approval
must be sought All other matters, including strategy, investment
and dividend policies, geaning and corporate governance
procedures, are reserved for the approval of the Board of
Directors The Board meets at least quarterly and recenes full
information on the Company’s investment performance, assets,
habilities and other relevant information in advance of Board
meetings The Manager, in the absence of explicit instructions
from the Board, is empowered to exerase discretion in the use of
the Company’s voting nghts All shareholdings are voted, where
practicable, in accordance with the Manager's own corporate
governance policy, which 15 to seek to maxirnise shareholder
value by constructive use of votes at company meetings and by
endeavouring to use its influence as an investor with a pnncipled
approach to corporate governance

Throughout the year a number of committees have been in
operation The commuttees are the Audit Committee, the
Management Engagement and Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee

The Audit Committee, chaired by Mark Cannon Brookes,
operates within clearly defined terms of reference and compnses
all of the Directors The duties of the Audit Committee include
reviewing the Annuat and Intenm Accounts, the system of
internal controls, the terms of appointment of the auditors
together with their remuneration, and ensuring that auditor

objectnity and independence 1s safequarded n the prowision of
non audit services by the audrtors It also provides a forum
through which the auditors may report to the Board of Directors
and meets at least twice yearly The Board has reviewed the
Combined Code’s recommendation that the position of Audrt
Commuttee Chairman should not be held by the Chairman of the
Board, but concluded that Mark Cannon Brookes as Chairman of
the Board was suited to the role

The Management Engagernent and Remuneration Committee,
chaired by Mark Cannon Brookes, comprises the full Board and
reviews the appropnateness of the Manager's appointment
together with the terms and conditions thereof on a regular basis

The Nomination Committee, chaired by Mark Cannon Brookes,
comprises the full Board and 1s convened for the purpose of
considenng the appointment of additional Directors as and when
considered appropnate In considering appointments to the
Board, the Nomination Committee takes into account the
ongoing requirements of the Company and the need to have a
balance of skills and experntience within the Board

During the year the Board held a non-executive Directors meeting
10 discuss the composition and performance of the Board

The following table sets out the number of Board and
Commuttee meetings held for the period te 28 January 2008 and
the number of meetings attended by each Director

Management

Engagement and
Board of Audit  Remuneration Nomination
Dwrectors Committee Committes Committee
Held Attended Held Attended Held Attended Held Attended

Mark Cannon Brookes

(Chairman)* 5 5 2 2 1 1 1 1
Andrew Karneyt 5 5 2 2 1 1 1 1
Gillian Nott 5 q 2 2 1 1 1 1
Robert Owen 5 5 2 2 1 1 1 1

*Chairman of ali the Commuttees
1Senior Independent Director

Indvidual Directors may, at the expense of the Company, seek
independent professional adwice on any matter that concerns
them in the furtherance of therr duties The Company
maintains appropriate Directors’ and Officers’ liability
Insurance

After making enquiries, and bearing in mind the nature of the
Company's business and assets, the Directors consider that the
Company has adequate resources to continue in operattonal
existence for the foreseeable future For this reason, they
continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the
accounts

Whistleblowing

The Beard has considered the Code’s recommendations in
respect of arrangements by which staff of the Manager or
Secretary of the Company may, in confidence, raise concerns
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within their respective orgarisations about possible improprieties
in matters of financial reporting or other matters It has
conduded that adequate arrangements are in place for the
proportionate and independent investigation of such matters
and, where necessary, for approprate follow-up action to be
taken within their respective organisations

Relations with Shareholders

The Company welcomes the views of shareholders and places
great importance on communication with its shareholders

The Chairman and other Directors are available to meet
shareholders if required The Annual General Meeting of the
Company provides a forum both formal and informal, for
shareholders to meet and discuss issues with the Directors and
Manager of the Company Detalls of the resolutions to be
proposed at the Annual General Meeting on 19 March 2008 can
be found in the Notice of Meeting on pages 42 and 43

Internal Control

The Board 15 responsible for the Company's system of internal
control and for reviewing its effectiveness The Board has
therefore established an ongoing process designed to meet the
particular needs of the Company in managing the nsks to which
It 15 exposed, consistent with the internal control guidance 1ssued
by the Financial Reporting Counal in October 2005 The process
15 based principally on the Manager's existing nsk-based
approach to internal control whereby a test matrix is created that
identifies the key functions camed out by the Manager and other
service providers, the individual activities undertaken within
those functions, the risks associated with each actwvity and the
controls employed to minimise those risks A residual risk rating
1s then applied The test matnx is regularly updated and the
Board 15 prowided with regular reports highlighting all matenal
changes to the nsk ratings and confirming the action which has
been, or is being, taken A formal annual review of these
procedures 15 carried out by the Audit Committee and includes
consideration of internal control reports issued by the Manager
and other service providers

Such review procedures have been in place throughout the
financial year and up to the date of approval of the Annual
Report and the Board s satisfied with therr effectiveness
These procedures are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the nsk of falure to meet business objectives and,
by therr nature, can provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance against matenal misstatement or loss The Board
monitors the investment performance of the Company in
companson to the benchmark index and to comparable
Venture Capital Trusts at each Board meeting The Board also
reviews the Company's activities since the last Board meeting
to ensure that the Manager adheres to the published
investment policy and approved investment guidelines and, If
necessary, approves changes to such policy and guidelines,
although no matenial changes may be made to the
Company’s published investment policy as set out on pages
15 and 16 without the prior approval of shareholders by
passing an ordinary resolution

The Board has reviewed the need for an internal audit function
The Board has deaded that the systems and procedures
employed by the Manager, including the internal audit function
within F&C Asset Managemenit plc and the review of its

AAF 01/06 Report by a firm of external audrtors, provide
sufficient assurance that a sound system of internal control,
which safeguards shareholders' investment and the Company’s
assets, 1s maintained An internal audit function, specific to the
Company, is therefore considered unnecessary

Management

ISIS EP LLP ('the Manager’) manages the investments for the
Company From 1 January 2007, the hquid assets within the
portfolio (being cash, gilts and other assets, which are not
categornised as venture capital investments for the purpose of the
FSA's rules) have been managed by FPPE LLP This was a new
imiated partnership, which 1s authorised and regulated by the
FSA and which has the same controlling members as the
Manager The Manager has continued to act as the manager of
the Company and as the investment manager of the Company’s
ihquid assets (being all AiM-traded and cther venture capital
investments)

The personnel involved in prowding management and
investment management services to the Company has not
changed as a result of the implementation of these
arrangements

The Manager also provides or procures the provision of
secretanial, administrative and custodian services to the
Company The management agreement may be terminated at
any date by erther party giving twelve months' notice of
termination Under the management agreement, the Manager
receives a fee of 2 5 per cent per annum of the net assets
relating to the ordinary shares and 2 0 per cent per annum of the
net assets relating to the C shares In addition, the Manager
receives an annual administration fee subject to a maximum of
£100,000 excluding VAT (adjusted for the movement in RP)
Annual runming costs are capped at 3 5 per cent of the net assets
of the Company (excluding any performance fee payable to the
Manager and Irrecoverable VAT), any excess being refunded by
the Manager by way of an adjustment to its management fee

it 15 the Board’s opinion that the continuing appointment of
ISIS EP LLP on the terms agreed 15 in the best interests of
shareholders as a whole

Co-investment Scheme

The Co-investment Scheme requires that executive members of
the Manager invest their own personal capital into five per cent
of the ordinary shares of each and every unquoted investment
except those Iife science transactions where ISIS EP LLP i5 not the
lead nvestor From 1 Apnil 2007, the rate increased to 12 per
cent By 31 December 2007, a total of £251,740 had been
invested in ordinary shares of 13 unquoted investments by

31 executives

Shares under the Scheme cannot be sold unless and unti! each
investment held by the four Baronsmead VCTs Is sold
contemporaneously Gains for the executives will only be
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achteved if the Baronsmead VCTs make gains from the
underlying investment If the executive leaves before the sale
of the nvestment, they may miss out on much of the potential
value inherent in therr Co-investment shares The Scheme 15
intended to help attract, recruit, retain and incentivise
executive members of the Manager

Procedures are In place whereby the Board recewves regular
updates from the Manager regarding participants in the
Co-investment Scheme and the amounts commutted by

ISIS EP LLP 10 each new unguoted investment The Board also
reviews the Co-investment Scheme arrangements at each
quarterly valuatton meeting An open dialogue 1s mantained
between the Board and the Manager regarding the operation of
the Scheme

Performance Incentive

A performance fee 15 payable to the Manager when the Total
Return on net praceeds of the crdinary share offers exceeds
8 per cent per annum (simple) on net funds raised

To take account of the proceeds from the 2005/6 *C’ Share offer
which were held initally in cash and fixed interest securities,

an annual threshold of only 2 per cent for the period to

31 December 2007 {simple) applied to the funds raised under
the C Share offer after which the existing arrangement described
above will apply The performance fee is capped at 4 99 per cent
of both pools of assets

To the extent that the Total Return exceeds these thresholds, a
performance fee (plus VAT) will be pard to the Manager of

20 per cent of the excess to 31 March 2007, 16 66 per cent to
31 March 2008, 13 33 per cent to 31 March 2009, and 10 per
cent thereafter

No performance fee 1s payable for the year to 31 December
2007

ISIS EP LLP — Arrangement Fees

Duning the year to 31 December 2007, 1SIS EP LLP receved
net income of £73,616 (2006 £125,313) in connection with
arrangement fees {(net of abort costs) in Investee companies

VCT Status Adviser

The Company has retained PnicewaterhouseCoopers LLP
{PwC) 10 adwvise it on comphance with VCT requirements
PwC review new Investment opportunities, as appropnate,
and review regularly the investment portfolic of the Company
PwC work closely with the Manager but report directly to the
Board

Creditor Payment Policy

The Company’s payment policy is to settle investment
transactions in accordance with market practice and to ensure
settlement of supplier invoices in accordance with stated
terms

The Company did not have any trade creditors at the year end

Environment

The Company seeks to conduct its affars responsibly and
environmental factors are, where appropnate, taken into
consideration with regard to investment decisions

Auditors

KPMG Audit Plc have expressed their willingness to continue in
office as auditors and a resolution proposing therr
re-appointment will be submitted to the Annual General
Meeting

Post Balance Sheet Event

in accordance with the terms set out in the C share prospectus
dated 14 September 2005 the C shares were due to convert into
ordinary shares by reference to a date not later than

31 December 2007 The conversion ratic of € shares

Intc ordinary shares was 0 85642528 and this was calculated by
taking the net asset value of assets of the C shareholders at the
calculation date of 31 December 2007 (103 15p per share) and
dividing 1t by the net asset value of the assets of the existing
ordinary shareholders at 31 December 2007 (120 44p per share)

On 28 January 2008, the conversion of the C shares into ardinary
shares resulted 1n 21,899,078 ordinary shares being i1ssued

As a result of the C share conversion, the Company has assets of
£65 2 milion and the total number of ordinary shares In 1ssue
after conversion on 28 January 2008 was 54,152,599 (120 44p
per ordinary share)

All shares will rank pan passu for future dwidends paid by the
Company

All deferred shares which arose, as part of the conversion
pracess, have been cancelled by the Company No value was
attnbutable to these shares

Substantial Interests
At 28 January 2008 the Company was not aware of any

beneficial interest exceeding 3 per cent of the 1ssued share
capital

Redesignation of unissued C shares

Resolution 6 sub-divides and redesignates all the C shares of 50p
each in the authonsed but unissued share capital of the
Company as ordinary shares of 10p Upon the passing of this
resolution the Company’s authonsed ssued and unissued share
capital wilt only compnse ordinary shares of 10p each

Directors” Authority to Allot Shares, to
Disapply Pre-emption Rights and to
re-issue Treasury Shares

The authonty proposed under Resolution 7 1s required so that
the Brirectors may offer existing shareholders the opportunity to
add to their investment or to offer to potental shareholders an
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opportunity to invest in the Company in a tax efficient manner
without the Company hawing to incur substantial costs Any
consequent modest increase in the size of the Company wall, in
the opinion of the Directors, be in the interests of shareholders
generally Any issue proceeds will be available for investment in
line with the Company's investment policy and may be used, in
part, 10 purchase ordinary shares in the market Resolution 7
renews the Directors” authonity to allot ordinary shares This
would enable the Directors until 18 March 2013, to allot up to
5,415,250 ordinary shares (representing approximately 10 per
cent of the Company’s 1ssued share capital as at 28 January
2008)

Resolution 8 renews and extends the Directors’ authonty to
allot equity securities for cash without pre-emption nghts
applying in certain arcumstances This resolution would
authonse the Directors, until the date falling 15 months after
the date of the passing of the resoltution or, if earlier, the
conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the
Company to ssue ordinary shares and/or re-issue shares out of
Treasury for cash without pre-emption rights applying by way
of offer to existing shareholders, or re-issuing shares out of
Treasury up to a maximum of 5,415,250 ordinary shares
(representing approximately 10 per cent of the Company’s
1ssued share capital as at 28 January 2008) This power will be
exercised only if, in the opinion of the Directors, it would be in
the best interests of shareholders as a whole

Treasury Shares

The Company currently holds 3,180,000 ordinary shares in
Treasury If Resolution 8 15 passed the Board will consider itself
permitted by shareholders to re-issue ordinary shares out of
Treasury at a discount to the prevailing NAV per ordinary share if
the Board considers 1t in the best interests of the Company to do
so However, ordinary shares will never be re-issued out of
Treasury at a discount wider than the discount prevaring at the
time the shares were initially bought back by the Company

Landsbanki Securnities Limited {formerly Teather & Greenwood),
the Company's brokers, currently provide a two way secondary
market in the Company’s shares It 15 the Board's intention only
to use the mechanism of re-issuing Treasury shares when
demand for the Company’s shares 1s greater than the supply
avallable in the market place Although shares re-issued from
Treasury will not attract the 30 per cent iniial income tax relief,
all further dwvidends will be tax-free and if they are subsequently
sold, no capital gains tax is payable by qualifying shareholders on
these shares

Directors’ Authority to Purchase Shares

The current authonty of the Company to make purchases of up
to approximately 14 99 per cent of 1ts 1ssued share capital expires
at the end of the Annual General Meeting and Resolution 9
seeks renewal of such authonty until the next Annual General
Meeting (or the expiry of 15 months, if earlier) The pnice paid for
shares will not be less than the nominal value nor more than the
maximum amount permitted to be paid in accordance wath the
rules of the UK Listing Authority in force as at the date of
purchase This power will be exercised only if, In the opinion of
the Directors, a repurchase would be in the best interests of
shareholders as a whole Any shares repurchased under this
authority will either be cancelled or held in Treasury for future
re-sale In appropnate market conditions

Extension to the life of the Company

One of the main changes brought about by the Finance Act
2006 s that the holding pened for investments moves from

3 years to 5 years from 6 April 2006 This means that in order for
initial income tax relief not to be withdrawn, shareholders must
hold their shares for 5 years from the date of investment
Resolution 10, which would extend the life of the Company to
beyond the AGM In 2014, will permit new shares to be issued on
an ongoing basis

By Order of the Board,

Rhonda Nicoll

for F&C Asset Management plc
Secretary

80 George Street
Edinburgh EH2 3BU

28 January 2008

AL i
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

The Board has prepared this report, in accordance with the
requirements of Schedule 7A to the Comparies Act 1985 An
ordinary resolution for the approval of this report will be put
to the members at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting

The law requires the Company's auditors to audit certain of
the disclosures provided Where disclosures have been audited,
they are indicated as such The auditors” opimion 15 included 1in
the “Independent Auditors’ Report’

Directors’ Fees

The Board consists solely of non-executive Directors and 1s
considered to be entirely independent The Board considers at
least annually the level of the Board's fees, in accordance with
the Combined Code on Corporate Governance The Company
Secretary provides information on comparative levels of
Directors’ fees to the Board in advance of each review

The Board concluded following the review of the level of
Directors’ fees for the forthcoming year that the Charman’s
and Directors’ fees should remain the same

The Remuneration Committee 15 Mark Cannon Brookes
(Chairman), Andrew Karney, Gillan Nott and Robert Owen As
the Company has no executive Directors, the Committee meets,
at least annually, to determine the remuneration and terms of
appointment of the Investment Manager

Policy on Directors’ Fees

The Board’s policy 1s that the remuneration of non-executive
Directors should reflect the experience of the Board as a whole,
be fair and comparable to that of other relevant venture capital
trusts that are similar in size and have similar investment
objectives and structures Furthermore, the level of remuneration
should be sufficient to attract and retain the Directors needed to
oversee properly the Company and to reflect the speafic
arcumstances of the Company, the duties and responsibilities of
the Directors and the value and amount of time commutted to
the Company's affairs It is intended that this policy will continue
far the year ended 31 December 2008 and subsequent years

The fees for the non-executive Directors are determined within
the hmits set out in the Company's Articles of Association The
present hmit 15 £100,000 per annum Non-executive Directors
are not eligible for bonuses, pension benefits, share options,
long-term incentive schemes or other benefits

Directors’ service contracts

It 15 the Board’s policy that Directors do not have service
contracts, but new Directors are provided with a letter of
appointment

Date of

Onginal Due date for
Director appointment Re-election
Mark Cannon Brockes 10 January 2001 AGM 2009
Andrew Karney 10 January 2001 AGM 2010
Gilhan Nott 10 January 2001 AGM 2008
Robert Owen 10 January 2001 AGM 2008

The terms of Directors’ appointment are for an initial penod of
three years and provide that a Dwector shall retire and be
subject to re-election at the first annual general meeting after
therr appointment Directors are thereafter obliged to retire by
rotation, and, if they wish, to offer themselves for re-election

by shareholders, at least every three years after that In
accordance with the revised Combined Code on Corporate
Governance, Directors who have served on the Board for more
than nine years must offer themselves for re-election on an
annual basis There 15 no notice pencd and no provision for
compensation upon early termination of appointment

Company performance

The Board is responsible for the Company’s investment strategy
and performance, although the management of the Company's
investment portfolio 15 delegated to the Investment Manager
through the investment management agreement, as referred to
in the ‘Report of the Directors’ The graph below compares for
the five financial years ending 31 December 2007, the
percentage change over each penod In the total return
{assuming all dwvidends are reinvested) to ordinary shareholders
compared to the percentage change over each penod in total
shareholder return on a notional investment made up of shares
of the same kinds and number as those by reference to which
the FTSE All-Share Index 15 calculated This index was chosen for
COMpAarison purposes, as It represents a comparable broad equity
market index against which investors can measure the relative
performance of the fund An explanation of the performance of
the Company 1s given in the Chairman’s Statement and
Manager’s Review

Ordinary Share Price and FTSE All-Share Index Total Return
Performance Graph

Directors’ emoluments for the year (audited)

The Directors who served in the year received the following
emoluments in the form of fees

Fees Fees
2007 2006
£ £
Mark Cannon Brookes 21,000 21,000
Andrew Karney 14,000 14,000
Gilhan Nott 14,000 14,000
Robert Owen 14,000 14,000
Total 63,000 63,000
paN
On behalf of the Board,
Mark Cannon Brookes
Chairman
28 January 2008 y
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities in respect of the Annual Report and the Finanaal Statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with apphcable law and
regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law they have elected to
prepare the financial statements In accordance with UK Accounting Standards

The financial statements are required by law to give a true and fair view of the state of affars of the Company and of the profit
or loss of the Company for that period

In preparing these financial statements, the Directors are required to
@ select suttable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
@ make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

@ state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject 10 any matenal departures disclosed and
explained In the finangal statements, and

@ prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless 1t 1s inappropriate to presume that the company wall
continue In business

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
finanaial position of the Company and enable them to ensure that its financial statements comply with the Companies Act 1985
They have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Company
and to prevent and detect fraud and other wrregulanties

Under applicable law and regulations, the Directors are also responsible for prepaning a Directors’ Report (including Business
Review), Directors” Remuneration Report and Corporate Governance Statement that comply with that law and those regulations

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information incfuded on the
company's website Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from
legislation in other jurisdictions
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Independent Auditors’ Report

Independent Auditors’ report to the members of Baronsmead VCT 3 plc

We have audited the financial statements of Baronsmead VCT 3 plc for the year ended 31 December 2007 which comprise the
Income Statement, Balance Sheet, Cash Flow Statement and Reconciliation of Movements in Shareholders’ Funds and the related
notes These financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein We have also audited the
information in the Directors’ Remuneration Report that 15 described as having been audited

This report s made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with section 235 of the Companies Act 1985 Our
audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are required to state to
them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’'s members as a bedy, for our audit work, for this report, or for
the opmnions we have formed

Respective Responsibilities of Directors and Auditors

The Directors' responsibilities for prepanng the Annual Report, the Directors’ Remuneration Report and the financal statements in
accordance with applicable law and UK Accounting Standards (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice} are set out in the
Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities on page 23

QOur responsibility 1s to audit the financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited in
accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and International Standards on Auditing {UK and Ireland)

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and far view and whether the finanaal
statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited have been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 1985 We also report to you whether in our gpinion, the information given 1n the Directors’ Report (including the
Business Review) I1s consistent with the financial statements The information given in the Directors’ Report (including the Business
Review) includes that specrfic information presented in the Manager's Review, Chairman’s Statement and Seven Year Summary
that 15 cross referenced from the Business Review We also report to you if, i our opinton, the Company has not kept proper
accounting records, if we have not receved all the information and explanations we require for cur audit, or if information
specsfied by law regarding directors’ remuneration and cther transactions 15 not disclosed

We review whether the Corporate Governance Statement reflects the company's compliance with the nine grovisions of the 2006
FRC Combined Code speafied for our review by the Listing Rules of the Finanaial Senaces Authonty, and we report if 1t does nat
We are not required to consider whether the board's statements on internal control cover all nsks and controls, or form an
opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s corporate governance procedures or 1ts nsk and control procedures

We read other information contamned in the Annua! Report and consider whether it 1s consistent with the audited financial
statements We consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements or matenal
inconsistencies with the financial statements Our responsibilities do not extend to any other information

Basis of Audit Opinion

We conducted our audit In accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing Practices
Board An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of ewdence relevant to the amounts and disdosures in the financial
statements and the part of the Directors' Remuneration Report to be audited It also includes an assessment of the significant
estimates and judgments made by the directors in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting
policies are appropnate to the company's circumstances, consistently applhed and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in order
to provide us with sufficiert evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements and the part of the Directors’
Remuneration Report to be audited are {ree from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or cther irregulanty or error In
forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements and the
part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited

Opin1on

In our opmion

@ the financia!l statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, of the state
of the company’s affairs as at 31 December 2007 and of its profit for the year then ended, and

@ the financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audiied have been properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 1985, and

@ the information given 1n theDirectors’ Report 1s consistent with (f financial statements

KPMG Audit Plc )\/\,G\ » {(ﬂ
Chartered Accountants

Registered Auditor
Edinburgh
28 January 2008




Income Statement

For the Year ended 31 December 2007

Ordinary shares C shares Total
Revenue Capital Total  Revenue Capital Total Revenue Capital Total
Notes £'000 £000 £000 £000 1000 £000 £'000 £000 £000
Unrealised (loss¥gain on investments 8 - (400) (400) - 1,493 1,493 - 1,093 1,093
Realised gain on investments 8 - 564 564 - 309 309 - 873 873
Income 2 1,548 - 1,548 1,021 - 1,021 2,569 - 2,569
Investment management fee 3 (304) (912) (1,216) (153) (459) (612) {as7) (1.371) (1,828)
Other expenses 4 (234) - (234) (2a7) - (247) {a81) - (481)
Profit/(loss) on ordinary activities
before taxation 1,010 (748) 262 621 1,343 1,964 1,631 595 2,226
Tax on ordinary activities 5 (197} 237 40 (174) 134 (40} {371) n -
Profit/(loss) on ordinary activities
after taxation 813 (511) 302 447 1.477 1,924 1,260 966 2,226
Return per ordinary share/C share
Basic 7 253p {(159)p 094p 183p 6 05p 788p - - -

Reconciliation of Movements in Shareholders’ Funds .

For the Year ended 31 December 2007

2607 2007 2007
Ordinary C
shares shares Total
Notes £000 £000 £000
Opening shareholders’ funds 42,321 24,227 66,548
Profit for the year 302 1,924 2,226
Increase in share caputal 680 1,696 2376
Purchase of shares for Treasury or cancellation 12 (759) - (759)
Dwidends pad 6 (3,698 (1,472) (5170)
Closing shareholders’ funds 38,846 26,375 65,221

The accompanying notes are an mtegral part of this statement
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Income Statement

For the Year ended 31 December 2006

Ordinary shares C shares Total
Revenue Capital Tota! Revenue Capitat Tota! Revenue Capital Total

Notes £.000 £000 £'000 £000 £000 £000 £°000 £°000 £000
Unrealised gain on investments - 6,884 6,884 - 1,509 1,509 - 8,393 8,393
Realised gan on investments - 779 779 - 241 241 - 1,020 1,020
Income 2 1170 - 1,170 950 - 950 2120 - 2120
Investment management fee 3 (309) (2,077} (2,386} {139) (775) (914) (448) (2,852) (3,300
Other expenses 4 (230} - (230} {139) - (139) (369) - (369)
Profit on ordinary activities
before taxation 631 5,586 6,217 672 975 1,647 1,303 6,561 7,864
Tax on ordinary activities 5 (65) 65 - {199) 199 - (264) 264 -
Profit on ordinary activities
after taxation 566 5,651 6,217 473 1,174 1,647 1,038 6.825 7.864
Return per ordinary share/C share
Basic 7 173p 1724p 1897p 197p 4 90p 687p - - -

Reconciliation of Movements in Shareholders’ Funds

For the Year ended 31 December 2006

20086 2006 2006
Ordinary C
shares shares Total
Notes £ 000 £'000 £000
Opening shareholders’ funds 39,226 17,022 56,248
Profit for the year 6,217 1,647 7.864
Increase n share capital 365 5,804 6,169
Cost of share premiurn conversion - (6) (6)
Purchase of shares for Treasury {1,504} - {1,504)
Dwidends paid 6 (1,983) (240)  {2,223)
Closing shareholders’ funds 42,321 24,227 66,548

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement




Balance Sheet

As at 31 December 2007

2007 2006
Ordinary C Ordinary
Shares Shares Total Shares C Shares Total
Notes £000 £000 £000 £ 000 £7000 £ 000

Fixed assets
investments 8 35,050 25,069 60,119 42,387 23,349 65,736
Current assets
Debtors g 943 405 1,348 317 338 655
Cash at bank and on deposit 3,231 1,340 4,571 1,251 1,081 2,332

4,174 1,745 5,919 1,568 1,419 2,987
Creditors (amounts faling due within one year) 10 (378) (354) (732) (1,634) (541) (2175
Net current assets/(habilities)} 3,796 1,391 5,187 {66) 878 812
Total assets less current habilities 38,846 26,460 65,306 42,321 24,227 66,548
Creditors {amounts falling due after one year) 11 - {85) (85) - - -
Net assets 38,846 26,375 65,221 42,321 24,227 66,548
Capital and reserves
Called-up share capital 12 3,543 12,785 16,328 3,509 12,000 15,509
Share premium account 13 4,879 911 5,790 4,253 - 4,253
Capital redemption reserve 13 267 - 267 247 - 247
Revaluation reserve 13 5,954 2,622 8,576 12,102 1,51 13,613
Profit and loss account 13 24,203 10,057 34,260 22,210 10,716 32,926
Equity shareholders’ funds 14 38,846 26,375 65,221 42,321 24,227 66,548
Net asset value per share
- Basic 14 12044p 103 15p - 13077p  10095p -
— Treasury 14 119 64p - - 129 66p - -

The financial statements on pages 25 to 41 were approved by the Board of Directors on 28 January 2008 and were signed on its behalf

by

MARK CANNON BROOKES (Charrman}

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this balance sheet
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Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2007

2007 2006
Ordinary Ordinary
Shares C Shares Total Shares C Shares Total

Notes £000 £000 £000 £000 £'000 £000
Operating activities
Investment income received 1,141 855 1,996 1,190 602 1,792
Deposit interest received 88 86 174 80 157 237
Investment management fees (2,291) (962) (3,253) (1,526) (462} {1,988)
Other cash payments (246) (123) (369) 210) (147) (357)
Net cash {outflowYinflow from
operating activrties 16 (1,308) (144) (1.452) (466) 150 (316)
Capital expenditure and financial investment
Purchases of investments (10,432) (18,447) (28,879) (2,191) (15,145) {17,336}
Disposals of investments 17,457 18,626 36,123 5,097 3,297 8,394
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from capital expenditure
and financral investment 7,065 179 7,244 2,906 (11,848) (8,942}
Dividends
Equity dwvidends paid (3,698) (1,472) {5,170) (1,983) (240) (2,223)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) before financing 2,059 (1,437) 622 457 (11,938) {11,481)
Financing
Issue of shares 709 1,743 2,452 370 7,804 8,174
Buy-back of ordinary shares (759) - (759) (1,504) - (1,504)
Expenses of 1ssue (29) (47) (76) (5) (600) {605)
Net cash (outflow)inflow from financing (79) 1,696 1,617 (1,139) 7,204 6,065
Increase/{decrease) in cash 1,980 259 2,239 {682) {4,734) {5,416}
Reconahation of net cash flow to movementn cash
Increase/(decrease) in cash 1,980 259 2,239 {682) (4,734) {5.416)
Opening net cash 1,251 1,081 2,332 1,933 5815 7,748
Closing cash position 15 3,231 1,340 4,571 1,251 1,081 2,332

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements




Notes to the Accounts

1 Accounting policies

(a) Basis of accounting
These financal statements have been prepared under UK

Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (UK GAAP) and on the
assumption that the Company maintains VCT status

The Company 1s no longer an Investment Company as defined
by Section 266 of the Comparues Act 1985, as Investment
Company status was revoked on 4 February 2004 in order to
permit the distnbution of capital profits

The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below
Where presentational guidance set out in the Statement of
Recommended Practice {"'SORP") for investment trusts issued
by the Association of Investment Companies {"AIC'") in
January 2003, revised December 2005, 1s consistent with the
requirements of UK GAAP, the Directors have sought to
prepare the financial statements on a basis compliant with the
recommendations of the SORP

Presentation of the Income Statement

In order to better reflect the actvities of a VCT and in
accordance with the SORP, supplementary information which
analyses the income statement between 1tems of a revenue
and capital nature has been presented alongside the income
statement The Revenue profitf{loss) on ordinary actvities after
taxation 1s the measure the Directors believe appropnate in
assessing the Company’s compliance with certain requirements
set out in Section 274 Income Tax Act 2007

(b} valuation of investments

Purchases or sales of financial assets are recogrised at the date
of transaction The balance of investments traded but not yet
settled are disclosed as debtors/creditors as appropnate

investments are valued at fair value For quoted securities this 1s
either bid price or the last traded price, depending on the
convention of the exchange on which the mvestment i1s quoted

In respect of unquoted investments, these are fair valued by the
Directors in accordance with the following rules, which are
consistent with the International Private Equity and Venture
Caprtal Valuation Guidehnes developed by the Briush Venture
Capital Association (BVCA) in conjunction with the EVCA and
AFIC

1 Investments are to be held at cost for a limited perod only and
not necessanly for a full 12 month perod The Company values
new Investments on a price earnings basis when audited
financial statements are available within the first 12 months of
the investment being made

2 Investments cutwith the initial imited holding peniod are
valued using a price earmngs ratio (at a significant discount to an
appropnate stock market prospective price earnings ratio) in the
absence of overnding factors Where such factors apply,
alternative methods of valuation will include apphication of an
arm’s length third party valuation, a pravision on cost or a net
asset basis

Gains and losses anising from changes 1n the fair value of the
investments are included in the Income Statement for the penod
as a capital item Transaction costs on acquisition are included
within the inthal recognition and the profit or loss on disposal 15
calculated net of transaction costs on disposal

{c) Income

Interest income on loan stock and dvidends on preference
shares are accrued on a daily basis Provision 1s made against this
income where recovery 1s doubtful Where the terms of
unquoted loan stocks only require interest to be paid on
redemption, the interest I1s recognised as mcome cnce
redemption is reasonably certain Until such date interest 1s
accrued dally and included within the valuation of the
Investment

Income from fixed interest secunties and deposit interest are
included on an effective interest rate basis

Dmdends on guoted shares are recognised as income on the
date that the related investments are marked ex-dwvidend and,
where no dividend date 15 quoted, when the Company’s nght
10 receive payment 15 established

(d) Expenses
All expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis

Expenses attnbutable to the ordinary shares and C shares were
allocated in proportion to their respective net assets

(e) Revenue/capital

The revenue column of the Income Statement includes all
income and expenses The capital column accounts for the
realised and unrealised gains and losses on investments and the
proportion of management fee charged to capital

(f) Issue costs
Issue costs are deducted from the share premium account

{g) Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation 15 recogrused in respect of all timing
differences that have onginated but not reversed at the balance
sheet date where transactions or events that result in an
obligation to pay more, or nght to pay less, tax in future have
occurred at the balance sheet date This 1s subject to deferred tax
assets anly being recognised if it 15 considered more likely than
not that there will be suitable profits from which the future
reversal of the underdying timing differences can be deducted
Timing differences are differences ansing between the
Company's taxable profits and its results as stated in the financial
statements which are capable of reversal in one or more
subsequent periods
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Notes to the Accounts

2 Income
2007 2006
Ordnary Ordnary
Shares C Shares Total Shares C Shares Total
£000 £000 £'000 £ 000 £ 000 £000

Income from investments 1
UK franked 374 28 402 413 4 M7
UK unfranked 1,073 900 1,973 677 789 1,466

1,447 928 2,375 1,090 793 1,883
Other income #
Deposit interest 101 93 194 80 157 237
Total income 1,548 1,021 2,569 1,170 950 2,120
Total iIncome compnses
Dividends 374 28 402 413 4 47
Interest 1,174 993 2,167 757 946 1,703

1,548 1,021 2,569 1,170 950 2,120
Income from iInvestments
Listed and AIM secunties 502 639 1,141 340 708 1,048
Unlisted securities 945 289 1,234 750 85 835

1,447 928 2,375 1,090 793 1,883

t All investments have been designated fair value through profit or loss on intbhal recognition, therefore all investment income
anses on investments at far value through profit or loss

# Other income on finanaal assets not designated far value through profit or loss

3 Investment management fee

2007 2006
Ordinary Ordinary

Shares C Shares Total Shares C Shares Total
£000 £000 £000 £°000 £ 000 £1000

Investment management fee (Including
irrecoverable VAT) 1,216 612 1,828 1,238 554 1,792
Performance fee (including irrecoverable VAT) - - - 1,148 360 1,508
1,216 612 1,828 2,386 914 3,300

For the purposes of the revenue and capital columns in the income statement, the management fee (including VAT) has been
allocated 25 per cent to revenue and 75 per cent to capital, in line with the Board's expected long term return in the form of
ncome and capital gains respectively from the Company’s investment portfolio

The management agreement may be terminated by either party giving 12 months’ notice of termimation The Manager, ISIS EP
LLP, receves a fee of 2 S per cent per annum (plus VAT) of the net assets of the Company’s ordinary shares and 2 per cent per
annum on the net assets of the C shares, calculated and payable on a quarterly basis

The Manager 15 entrtled to a performance fee when the total return on funds raised exceeds 8 per cent per annum {on a simple
rather than compound basis) on net funds raised To take account of the proceeds from the C share offer which was held initially
in cash and fixed interest secunties, an annual threshold of only 2 per cent for the period 1o 31 December 2007 (simple) appled
to the funds raised under the Offer after which the existing arrangement descrbed above will be applied The performance fee
will be capped at 4 99 per cent of each poo! of assets No performance fee is payable for the year ended 31 December 2007
(2006 £1,508,000) It 15 chargeable 100 per cent to capital

I51S EP LLP recewves an annual secretanal fee {plus VAT) of £30,000 {Iinked to the movement in RPI) plus a vanable fee of
0 125 per cent of the net assets of the Company which exceed £5 milhon This fee 1s capped at £100,000 (excluding VAT per
annum) and 15 subject to annual review It 1s chargeable 100 per cent to revenue

Amounts payable to the Manager at the period end are disclosed in the creditors note on page 34
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4 Other expenses

2007 2006
QOrdmary Ordinary
Shares CShares Total Shares C Shares Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £'000 £ 000
Directors’ fees 42 21 63 42 21 63 |
Secretanal fees 75 42 117 74 a3 17
Remuneration of the auditors and their associates
— audit 10 7 17 10 5 15
— other services supphed pursuant to
legisfation (interim review) 4 3 7 3 2 5
— other services supplied relating to taxation 3 2 5 3 2 5
Trall commussion - 110 110 - 20 20
Other 100 62 162 938 46 144
234 247 481 230 139 369

The Chairman receves £21,000 per annum (2006 £21,000) Each of the other Directors receves £14,000 per annum (2006 [
£14,000) All figures include wrecoverable VAT, where applicable The Company 1s not registered for VAT

The Audit Committee reviews the nature and extent of non-audit services 1o ensure that independence 1s maintained
The Directors consider the auditors were best placed to provide the non-audit services above

5a Taxon ordmary activities

2007 2006
Ordinary Ordinary
Shares CShares Total Shares C Shares Total
£'000 £000 £000 E'000 £'000 £ 000
UK corporation tax (40) 40 - - - -

The income statement shows the tax charge allocated between revenue and capital |

5b Factors affecting tax charge for the year
The tax charge for the year 1s lower than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK for an investment company (30 per cent)
The differences are explained below \

2007 2006
Ordinary Ordinary

Shares CShares Total Shares C Shares Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £ 000 £000

Profit on ordinary activities befare tax 262 1,964 2,226 6,217 1,647 7.864

Corporation tax at standard rate of 30 per cent 79 589 663 1,865 494 2,359
Effect of

Mon-taxable dwvidend income (112) (8) (120) (124) m (125)

Non-taxable realisation gains (49) {541) (590) (2,299) {525} (2,824)

Losses carried forward/{utiised) 42 - a2 558 32 590

Tax charge for the year (note 5a) (a0) 40 - - - -

At 31 Decemnber 2007 the Company had surplus management expenses of £2,782,000 (2006 £2,617,000} which have not been
recognised as a deferred tax asset This 1s because the Company 1s not expected to generate taxable income in a future period in
excess of the deductible expenses of that future period and, accordingly, the Company is unlikely to be able to reduce future tax
habilities through the use of existing surplus expenses Due to the Company's status as a VCT, and the intention 1o continue
meeting the condrtions required to obtain approval in the foreseeable future the Company has not provided deferred tax on any
capital gains and losses arnsing on the revaluation or disposal of investments
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6 Dividends

2007

2006

Ordinary
Shares
£'000

C Shares
£000

Ordinary
Total Shares
£'000 £'000

C Shares
£°000

Total
£ 000

Amounts recognised as distributrons to equity
holders in the year
— final dwidend for the year ended 31 December

2005 of 3 5p per ordinary share -

- intenm dividend for the year ended 31 December

2006 of 2 5p per ordinary share -

- intenim dividend for the year ended 31 December

2006 of 1 Op per C share -

- final dwidend for the year ended 31 December
2006 of 4 Op per ordinary share 1,295
- final dwvidend for the year ended 31 December

2006 of 2 Op per C share -

— intenm dwvidend for the year ended 31 December

2007 of 3 Op per ordinary share 951
— intenim dividend for the year ended 31 December

2007 of 2 Op per C share -
- second intenm dividend for the year ended

31 December 2007 of 4 Sp per ordinary share 1,452
- second intenm dividend for the year ended

31 Decemnber 2007 of 2 Op per C share -

480

480

312

- 1,170

- 813

1,295 -
480 -
951 -
480 -

1,452 -

512 -

1,170
813

240

3,698

1,472

5170 1,983

240

2,223

Proposed distributions to equity holders at
the year end
— final dradend for the year ended 31 December
2006 of 4 Op per ordinary share -
— final dwvidend for the year ended 31 December
2006 of 2 Op per C share -

- 1,295

480

1,295

480

- 1,295

480

1,775

7 Return per share

Ordinary Shares

The O 94p profit per share (2006 18 97p profit per share) is based on the net profit from ordinary activities after tax of £302,000
(2006 £6,217,000) and on 32,133,709 (2006 32,776,271) ordinary shares, being the weighted average number of ordinary

shares in 1ssue dunng the year

C Shares

The 7 88p profit per share (2006 6 87p profit per share} 1s based on the net profit from ordinary activities after tax of £1,924,000
(2006 £1,647,000) and on 24,421,456 (2006 23,966,316) C Shares, being the weighted average number of C Shares In 1ssue

dunng the year
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8 Investments

All investments are designated fawr value through profit or loss at initial recognition, therefore all gains and losses arise on

investments designated at fair value through profit or loss Given the nature of the Company’s investments the fair value gains
recogrused in these financial statements are not considered to be readily convertible to cash in full at the balance sheet date and

therefore these far values are treated as unrealised

2007 2006
Ordinary Ordinary
Shares C Shares Total Shares C Shares Total
£'000 £'000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Interest bearnng secunities 5,587 10,750 16,337 3,989 14,882 18,871
Investments traded on AIM 10,369 4,627 14,996 15,080 3,352 18,432
Investments quoted on FTSE SmallCap 1,160 - 1,160 600 - 600
Unguoted mvestments 17,934 9,692 27,626 22,718 5115 27.833
35,050 25,069 60,119 42,387 23,349 65,736
Equity shares 20,692 6,821 27,513 28,196 3,937 32,133
Preference shares 29 61 90 696 61 757
Interest bearing securities 14,329 18,187 32,516 13,495 18,351 32,846
35,050 25,069 60,119 42,387 23,349 65,736
Ordinary Shares
Interest Quoted on
beanng Traded FTSE
securiies on AIM SmallCap Unquoted Total
£ 000 £000 £ 000 £000 £000
Opening book cost 3,987 12,865 619 12,814 30,285
Opening unrealised apprectation/{depreciation) Zz 2,215 (19) 9,904 12,102
3,989 15,080 600 22,718 42,387
Movements in the year
Purchases at cost 7,864 1,379 - 1,014 10,257
Sales ~ proceeds {6,267) (1,491) - (10,0009 (17,758)
— realised (losses)/gains on sales {1 (149) - 714 564
Reclassification of investments - (771) 1,021 {250} -
Unrealised gains reahised during the year 3 405 - 5,340 5,748
Decrease in unrealised appreciation ) (4.084) (461) (1,602} (6,148)
Closing valuation 5,587 10,369 1,160 17,934 35,050
Closing book cost 5,586 12,238 1,640 9,632 29,096
Closing unirealised appreciationf{depreciation) 1 (1,869) {480) 8,302 5,854
5,587 10,369 1,160 17,934 35,050
2007 2006
£000 £9000
(Decrease)increase in unrealised appreciation (400) 6,884

Bunng the year the Company ncurred brokerage costs on purchases of nil (2006 £3,000) and brokerage costs on sales of

£1,000 (2006 £4,000) in respect of ordinary shareholder interests
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8. Investments (continued)

C Shares
Interest Quoted on
bearing Traded FTSE
securities on AIM SmallCap Unguoted Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £:000
Opening bock cost 14,955 2,392 - 4,491 21,838
Opening unrealised (depreciationyapprectation (73) 960 - 624 1,511
14,882 3,352 - 5,115 23,349
Movements In the year
Purchases at cost 13,376 2,398 - 2,770 18,544
Sales — proceeds (17,542) {1,084) - - {18,626}
- realised gawns on sales 15 294 - - 309
Unrealised (losses)/gains realised during the year (68) 450 - - 382
Increasef{decrease) in unrealised appreciation 87 (783) - 1,807 1,111
Closing valuation 10,750 4,627 - 9,692 25,069
Closing book cost 10,736 4,450 - 7,261 22,447
Closing unrealised appreciation 14 177 - 2,431 2,622
10,750 4,627 - 9,692 25,069
2007 2006
£000 £'000
Increase in unrealised appreciation 1,493 1,509
During the year the Company did not ncur any brokerage costs on purchases or sales in respect of C shareholder interests
9 Debtors
2007 2006
Ordinary Ordinary
Shares C Shares Total Shares C Shares Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £'000
Prepayments and accrued income 682 405 1,087 317 338 655
Amounts due from brokers 261 - 261 - - -
943 405 1,348 317 338 655
10 Creditors (amounts falling due within one year}
2007 2006
Ordinary Ordinary
Shares C Shares Total Shares C Shares Total
£000 £000 £'000 £000 £'000 £000
Amounts due to brokers 34 97 131 209 - 209
Management, performance and secretanal fees
due to the Manager 304 166 470 1,382 517 1,898
Other creditors 10 ) | 1" 43 24 67
378 354 732 1,634 541 2,175
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11 Creditors (amounts falling due after one year)

2007 2006
Ordinary Crdinary
Shares C Shares Total Shares C Shares Total
£000 £000 £000 £°000 £000 £'000
Trall commussion payable - 85 85 - - -
- 85 85 - - -
12 Called-up share capital
2007
£000
Authonised
80,000,000 ordinary shares of 10p each 8,000
27,000,000 C shares of 50p each 13,500
21,500
Allotted, called-up and fully paid
Ordinary Shares
35,092,392 ordinary shares of 10p each at 31 December 2006 3,509
541,129 erdinary shares of 10p i1ssued during the year 54
200,000 ordinary shares of 10p repurchased for cancellation during the year 20
35,433,521 ordinary shares of 10p each listed at 31 December 2007 3,543
450,000 ordinary shares of 10p each repurchased durning the year and held in treasury at the year end {45)
2,730,000 ordinary shares of 10p each held in treasury at the start of the year (273)
32,253,521 ordinary shares of 10p each in 1ssue at 31 December 2007 3,225
C Shares
23,999,772 C shares of 50p each at 31 December 2006 12,000
1,570,559 C shares of 50p each 1ssued durning the year 785
25,570,331 C shares of 50p each at 31 December 2007 12,785

The capital of the Company s managed 1n accordance with 1ts investment policy, in pursuit of its investment objective, both of
which are detalled in the Report of the Directors on pages 15 and 16

Treasury shares

The Companies (Acquisition of Own Shares) (Treasury Shares) Regulatons 20063 came into force on 1 December 2003 and allowed
the Company to hold shares acquired by way of market purchase as treasury shares, rather than having to cancel them Up to

10 per cent of each class of a Company's shares may be heid in this way At the Company’'s AGM on 17 Apnl 2007 shareholders
approved a resolution permitting the company to issue shares from treasury at a discount to the prevaling NAV 1if the Board
considers 1t In the best interests of the Company to do so However, treasury shares will not be sold at a discount wider than the
discount prevailing at the time the shares were initially bought back by the Company It 15 the Board's intention only to use the
mechanism of re-issuing treasury shares when demand for the Company's shares 1s greater than the supply available in the
market place Such issues would be captured under the terms of the Prospectus Directive and subject to the annua! cap of

Euro 2 5 million on funds raised before requinng a full prospectus, although they would not be considered by HM Revenue &
Customs to be new shares entitling the purchaser to initial iIncome tax relief, and therefore shares are unlikely to be 1ssued from
treasury in the same year as a "top up” offer for subscription

Cshares
C share issues are used for large fund rasings (typically greater than £10 mihon) by the Company in order to

e enable shares to be 1ssued at a consistent price to all applicants, rather than by reference to a net asset value per share which
may fluctuate over the perod of the offer, and

e ensure that existing ordinary shareholders are not disadvantaged by the dilution of a mature investment portfolio through a
large injection of cash and near cash assets
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12 Called-up share capital {continued)

C shares convert to ordinary shares at a ratio calculated by reference to thew relative net asset value (NAV) per share as at the
calculation date Conversion takes place once the assets attributable to the C shares are considered to constitute a portfolio
sufficiently mature that the integration does not disadvantage either ordinary or C share holders, and not later than the calculation
date stipulated in the C share prospectus

In accordance with the terms set out in the C share prospectus dated 14 September 2005 the C shares were due to convert into
ordinary shares by reference to a date not later than 31 December 2007 The conversion ratio of C shares into ordinary shares
was calculated by taking the net asset value of assets of the C shareholders at the calculation date of 31 December 2007

{103 15 pence per share) and dviding by the net asset value of the assets of the existing ordinary shareholders at 31 December
2007 (120 44 pence per share) Based on this calculation the conversion ratio was 0 85642528

On 28 January 2008, the conversion of the C shares into ordinary shares resulted m 21,899,078 ordinary shares being issued

All deferred shares which arose, as part of the conversion process, have been cancelled by the Company No value was
attributable to these shares

The Company does not have any externally imposed capital requirements

13 Reserves

Crdinary Shares
Share Capital Profit
premium redemption Revaluation and loss
account™ reserve* reserve* account
£000 £ 000 £000 £000
At 31 December 2006 4,253 247 12,102 22,210
Issue of shares 655 - - -
Purchase of shares - 20 - (759)
Expenses of share 1ssue (29) - - -
Transfer of prior years revaluatron to profit and loss account - - (5,748} 5,748
Net increase in value of investments - - (400} 400
Dimdends pad - - - (3,698)
Retained profit for the year - - - 302
4,879 267 5,954 24,203

C Shares

Share Profit
premm Revaluation and foss
account® resere® account
£'000 £000 £000
At 31 December 2006 - 1,511 10,716
Issue of shares 958 - -
Expenses of share Issue @7 - -
Transfer of prior years' revaluation to profit and loss account - (382) 382
Net increase in value of investments - 1,493 (1,493)
Dividends paid - - (1,472)
Retained profit for the year - - 1,924
91 2,622 10,057

When the Company revalues its investments dunng the year, any gains or losses arising are credited/charged to the revaluation
reserve unless any diminution in fair value 1s considered permanent, in which case 1t 1s charged to the profit and loss account
When an investment 1s sold any balance held on the revaluation reserve 1s transferred to the profit and loss account as a
movement In reserves

*These reserves are non-distnbutable
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14 Net asset value per share

The net asset value per share and the net asset values attributable to the ordinary shares and C shares at the year end are
calculated in accordance with their entittements In the Articles of Association and were as follows

Net asset value

Number of shares per share attnbutable Net asset value attributable

2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006

number number pence pence £'000 £'000

Ordinary shares {basic) 32,253,521 32,362,392 120 44 13077 38,846 42,321
Ordinary shares (treasury) 35,433,521 35,092,392 119 64 129 66 42,392 45,501
C shares (basic) 25,570,331 23,999,772 103 15 100 85 26,375 24,227

Basic net asset value per share is based on net assets at the year end, and on 32,253,521 (2006 32,362,392) ordinary shares and
25,570,331 (2006 23,999,772) C shares, being the respective number of shares in 1ssue at the year end

Treasury net asset value per share 1s based on net assets at the year end, inclusive of the 3,180,000 (2006 2,730,000) ordinary
shares held in treasury valued at middle market share price, and on 35,433,521 (2006 35,092,392) ordinary shares being the
number of ordinary shares hsted at the year end

15 Analysis of changes in cash

2007 2006
Ordinary Crdinary
Shares C Shares Total Shares C Shares Total
£000 £000 £000 £ 000 £ 000 £000
Beginning of year 1,251 1,081 2,332 1,933 5,815 7,748
Net cash inflow/{outflow} 1,980 259 2,239 (682) (4,734) (5.416)
As at 31 December 2007 3231 1,340 4,571 1,251 1,081 2,332

16 Reconcilliation of net revenue before taxation to net cash {outflow)/inflow from operating activities

2007 2006
Ordinary Crdinary

Shares € Shares Total Shares C Shares Total

£000 £'000 £:000 £ 000 £1000 £000

Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 262 1,964 2,226 6,217 1,647 7,864
Profit on realisation of investments (564) (299) (863) (779) (241} (1,020)
Unrealised lossesf{gains} on investments 400 (1,503) (1,103) (6,884) {1,509) (8,393)
(Increaseldecrease n debtors (325) (67) (392) 97 (208) (1mn
(Decrease)increase in creditors (1,081} (239) {1,320} 883 461 1,344
Net cash {outflow)inflow from operating actmities {1,308) {144) 1,452) (466) 150 (316)

17 Contingencies, guarantees and financaal commitments

There were no contingencies, guarantees and finanaal commitments of the Company as at 31 December 2007 (2006 nl)

18 Significant interests

There were no interests of 20 per cent or more of any dlass of share capital, In Investee comparies at 31 December 2007 (2006
nl}

Further information on the significant interests is disclosed on pages 8 and 9
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19 Post balance sheet event

On 28 January 2008 the C shares were converted into ordinary shares in accordance with the terms set out in the C share
prospectus dated 14 September 2005 Further details are provided 1n note 12

20 Financial iInstruments

The Company's financial instruments comprise equity and fixed interest investments, cash balances and hquid resources including
debtors and creditors The Company helds financial assets in accordance with its investment policy to invest in a diverse portfolio
of UK growth businesses, whether unquoted or traded on AIM

Fixed asset investments (see note 8) are valued at fair value For quoted secunities this is either bid price or the last traded price,
depending on the convention of the exchange on which the investment 1s quoted In respect of unquoted Investments, these are
fair valued by the Directors (using rules consistent with the International Private Equity and Venture Capital Valuation Guidelines)
The fair value of all other financial assets and habilities 1s represented by their carrying value in the Balance Sheet

The Company's investing activities expcose 1t to vanous types of nsk that are associated with the financial instruments and markets
in which 1t invests The most impertant types of financal nsk to which the Company 15 exposed are market nisk, credit sk and
liqurdity risk

The nature and extent of the finanaal instruments outstanding at the balance sheet date and the nsk management policies
employed by the Fund are discussed below

21 Market nisk

Market nsk embodies the potential for both loss and gains and includes interest rate nsk and prce nsk

The Company's strategy on the management of investment nisk 15 driven by the Company’s investment objective as outlined in
note 20 The management of market risk 1s part of the investment management process and is typical of private equity
investment The portfolio 1s managed in accordance with pelicies and procedures in place as described in more detall in the Report
of the Directors on pages 17 to 19, with an awareness of the effects of adverse price movements through detalled and continuing
analysis, with an objective of maximising overall returns to shareholders Investments in unquoted stocks and AIM listed
companies, by their nature, involve a higher degree of nsk than investments in the main market Some of that nisk can be
mitigated by diversifying the portfolio across business sectors and asset dasses The Company’s overall market positions are
monitored by the Board on a quarterly basis

Detalls of the Company's investment portfolio at the balance sheet date are disclosed in the schedule of investments set out on
pages 8 and 9 An analysis of investments between debt and equity instruments 1s disclosed In note 8

27 per cent of the Company's investments are listed on the London Stock Exchange or traded on AtM A 5 per cent increase In
stock pnices as at 31 December 2007 would have increased the net assets attributable to the Company’s shareholders and the
total profit for the year by £808,000 (2006 £952,000), an equal change in the opposite direction would have decreased the net
assets attributable to the Company’s shareholders and the total profit for the year by an equal amount

46 per cent of the Company’s investments are in unquoted companies held at farr value Valuation methodology includes the
application of a Price/Earnings ratio derved from listed companies with similar charactenstics Therefore the value of the unquoted
element of the portfolio Is also indirectly affected by price movements on the listed exchanges A 5 per cent increase in the
valuations of unquoted investments at 31 December 2007 would have increased the net assets attributable to the Company's
shareholders and the total profit for the year by £1,381,000 (2006 £1,392,000), an equat change in the opposite direction would
have decreased the net assets attnbutable to the Company’s shareholders and the total profit for the year by an equal amount




Notes to the Accounts

22 Interest rate risk

Some of the Company’s financial assets are interest bearning, some of which are at fixed rates and some at vanable As a result, the
Company 1s subject to exposure to fair value interest rate risk due to fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market mterest rates

The table below summarises weighted average effective interest rates for the fixed interest-bearing financial instruments

Fixed rate 2007 2006
Weighted Weighted
Total Weighted average Total Weighted average
fixed average ume for fixed average time for
rate interest which rate rate nterest which rate
portfolio rate 15 fixed partfclio rate is fixed
£000 % days £ 000 % days

Ordinary Shares

Fixed rate

Financial assets 563 S 67 1,746 47 233
C Shares

Fixed rate

Financial assets 7.636 5 67 13,172 45 66

Floating rate

When the Company retains cash balances, the majorty of cash s ordinanly held on interest bearing deposit accounts and, where
appropnate, within an interest bearing money market open ended investment company (OEIC) The benchmark rate which
determines the interest payments received on interest beanng cash balances is the bank base rate which was 5 75 per cent as at
31 December 2007 (2006 5 0 per cent)

2007 2006
Ordinary < Ordinary C
shares shares Total shares shares Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 f 000
Floating rate
CEIC 5,024 3,114 8,138 2,243 1,710 3,953
Cash on deposit 321 1,240 4,571 1,251 1,081 2,332

An increase of 25 basis points In Interest rates as at the reporting date would have decreased the net assets attributable to the
Company's shareholders and the total profit for the year by £390,000 (2006 £779,000) A decrease of 25 basis points would
have had an equal but opposite effect
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23 Credit nsk

Credit nsk 15 the risk that a counterparty to a financial instrument will fall to discharge an obligation or commitment that it has
entered into with the Company The Investment Manager has in place a monitoring procedure In respect of counterparty nisk
which 15 reviewed on an ongoing basis The carrying amounts of financial assets best represents the maximum credit nsk exposure
at the balance sheet date

At the reporting date, the Company’s financial assets exposed to credit sk amounted to the following

2007 2006

Ordinary [ Ordinary C
shares shares Total shares shares Total
£000 £000 £000 £ 000 £'000 £'000
Investments in fixed interest instruments 563 7,636 8,199 1,746 13,172 14,918
Investments in floating rate instruments 5,024 3,114 8,138 2,243 1,710 3,953
Cash and cash equivalents 3,231 1,340 4,571 1,251 1,081 2,332
Balances due from brokers 261 - 261 - - ~
Interest, dvidends and other recevables 682 405 1,087 317 338 655
9,761 12,495 22,256 5,557 16,301 21,858

Credit nsk ansing on fixed interest instruments s mitigated by investing in UK Government Stock

Credit nsk ansing on floating rate mstruments 1s mitigated by investing in a money market open ended nvestment company
managed by F&C Fund Management Limited, a trading subsidiary of F&C Asset Management plc, to whom the Manager has
delegated the prowsion of company secretarnal and administrative services, and the risk management procedures of which the
Board regularly reviews in this regard

Credit risk on ungucted loan stock held within unhsted investments 1s considered to be part of market risk as disclosed in note 21

Credit nisk ansing on transactions with brokers relates to transactions awaiting settlement Risk relating to unsettled transactions 15
considered to be small due to the shart settlement penod involved and the high credit quality of the brokers used The Board
monitors the quality of service provided by the brokers used to further mitigate this nisk

All the assets of the Company which are traded on a recognised exchange are held by JPMorgan Chase (JPMY), the Company's
custodran Bankruptcy or insolvency of the custodian may cause the Company's nghts with respect to secunties held by the
custodian to be delayed or hmited The Board moniters the Company's risk by reviewing the custodian’s internal control reports as
described in the Report of the Directors on page 19

Substantially all of the cash held by the Company s held by JPM Bankruptcy or insolvency of JPM may cause the Company's
rnghts with respect to the cash held by JPM to be delayed or imited The Board monitors the Company’s nsk by reviewing
regularly JPM’s internal control reports as previously described Should the credit quality or the financial position of JPM deteriorate
significantly the Investrment Manager will move the cash holdings to another bank

There were no significant concentrations of credit risk to counterparties at 31 December 2007 or 31 December 2006 No
indmdual investment exceeded 3 5 per cent of the net assets attributable to the Company’s shareholders at 31 December 2007
{2006 3 7 per cent)
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24 Liquidity nisk

The Company's financial instruments include investments in unhsted equity investments which are not traded in an organised
public market and which generally may be iliquid As a result, the Company may not be able to iquidate quickly some of its
investments in these instruments at an amount close to therr far value in arder to meet its hquidity requirements, or to respond to
specific events such as deterioration in the creditworthiness of any particular 1ssuer

The Company's listed secunities are considered to be readily realisable as they are predominantly UK Government Stock

The Company's iquidity risk 15 managed on an ongoing basis by the Investment Manager in accordance with policies and
procedures in place as descnbed in the Report of the Directors on pages 17 to 19 The Company’s overall hquidity nsks are
monitored on a quarterly basis by the Board

The Company maintains sufficient investments in cash and readly realisable securities to pay accounts payable and acerued
expenses At 31 December 2007 these investments were valued at £20,908,000 (2006 £21,203,000}

25 Related parties

Related party transactions inctude Management, Secretarial and Performance fees payable to the Manager, ISIS EP LLP, as
disclosed in notes 3 and 10, and fees paid to the Directors as disclosed in note 4 In addition, the Manager operates a
Co-Investment Scheme, detailed in the Report of the Directors on pages 19 and 20, whereby employees of the Manager are
entitled to participate in certain unquoted investments alongside the Company

a




Notice of Annual General Meeting

Notice 1s hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of the Baronsmead VCT 3 plc will be held at the London Stock
Exchange, 10 Paternoster Square, London EC4M 7LS on 19 March 2008 at 11 00 am for the following purposes.

To consider and, iIf thought fit, pass the following Resolutions

Ordinary Business

1
2
3
4
5

That the Report and Accounts for the year to 31 December 2007 be received

That the Directors’” Remuneration Report for the year to 31 December 2007 be approved

That Mrs G Nott, who retires by rotation, be re-elected as a Director

That Mr R Owen, who retires by rotation, be re-elected as a Director

That KPMG Audtt Plc, be re-appointed as Auditors and that the Directors be authorised to determine therr remuneration

Special Business

Ordinary Resolution

6 That each and every C share of SO0p each in the authonsed but unissued share capital of the Company be and they are hereby
sub-divided and redesignated into five ordinary shares of 10p each in the authonsed but unissued share capital of the
Company

7 That

{a)

(b)

the Directors of the Company (the “Directors’) be and are hereby generally and unconditionally authonsed in accordance
with section 80 of the Companies Act 1985 (the “Act’), to exercise all the powers of the Company to allot relevant
securrties {as defined in that sectien) up to an aggregate nominal amount of £541,525 dunng the pericd commencing on
the passing of this resolution and expiring on 18 March 2013 {unless previously revoked, vaned or extended by the
Company in general meeting), but so that this authority shall allow the Company to make before the expiry of this
authonty offers or agreements which would or might require relevant securities to be allotted after such expiry, and

all previcus authorties given 1o the Directors in accordance with section 80 of the Act be and they are hereby revoked,
provided that such revocation shzll not have retrospective effect

Special Resolutions

8 That subject to the passing of resolution 7 set out in the notice of this meeting
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(a)

(b)

the Directors of the Company (the “Directors™) be and are hereby empowered, pursuant to section 95 of the Companies
Act 1985 (the "Act”), to allot equity secunities {as defined in section 94 of the Act) for cash pursuant to the authonty
given in accordance with section 80 of the Act pursuant to resolution 7 set out in the notice of this meeting as if section
89(1) of the Act did not apply to any such allotment, provided that this power shall be limited to the allotment of equity
securities in connection with

(n an offer of secunties, open for acceptance for a penod fixed by the Directors, to holders of ordinary shares of 10p
each in the Company and such other equity secunities of the Company as the Directors may determine on the register
on a fixed record date In proportion {as nearly as may be) to thew respective holdings of such secunties or in
accordance with the rights attached thereto {but subject to such exclustons or other arrangements as the Directors
may deem necessary or expedient to deal with fractional entitlements that would otherwise anse or with legal or
practical problems under the laws of, or the requirements of any recognised regulatory body or any stock exchange
In, any terntory or otherwise howsoever),

(1) {otherwise than pursuant to sub-paragraph ()) above} up to an aggregate nominal amount of £541,525 provided that
the maximum number of ordinary shares of 10p each in the Company which may be allotted pursuant to this sub-
paragraph (1) shall be 5,415,250 ordinary shares,

and shall expire on the date falling 15 months after the date of the passing of this resolution or, if earlier, at the
conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company, except that the Company may, before such expiry, make
offers or agreements which would or might require equity securities to be allotted after such expiry and this resolution
“allot” and “allotment’” shall be construed in accordance with section 94(3A) of the Act, and

words and expressions defined in or for the purposes of Part IV of the Act shall bear the same meanings in this resolution
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9 That the Company 1s hereby generally and uncondrtionally authonsed to make market purchases {within the meaning of
section 163 of the Comparies Act 1985) of ordinary shares of 10p each in the Company (‘ordinary shares”), provided that

{a) the maximum number of ordinary shares hereby authonsed to be purchased shall be 8,117,470,
{b) the minimum price which may be paid for each ordinary share 1s 10p,

{©) the maximum price which may be paid for an ordinary share shall be equal to the maximum amount permitted to be paid
in accordance with the rules of the UK Listing Authority in force as at the date of purchase,

{d) the authonty hereby conferred shall expire at the conclusion of the next Annual Generai Meeting of the Company or, If
earlier, on the expiry of 15 months from the passing of this resolution, unless such authority 1s renewed prior to such
time, and

{e) the Company may make a contract to purchase ordinary shares under the authonty hereby conferred prier to the expiry of
such authonty which will or may be completed or executed wholly or partly after the exprration of such authonty

10 That Article 160 1 of the Articles of Association of the Company, be and 15 hereby amended by replacing the first sentence of
that Article with the following sentence

“The Board shall procure that at the annual general meeting of the Company in 2014, and every annual generat meeting
thereafter, an ordinary resolution will be proposed to the effect that the Company shall continue n being as a venture capital
trust '

By Order of the Board

Rhonda Nicoll

for F&C Asset Management plc
Secretary - .
el y\ f *

80 George Street
Edinburgh EH2 3BU
28 January 2008

Pursuant to regulation 41 of the Uncertificated Secunties Regulations 2001, the Company has speafied that only those shareholders registered on the
register of members of the Company as at 11 00 am on 17 March 2008, or in the event that the meeting 15 adjoumed, on the register of members

48 hours before the tme of the meeting, shall be entitled to attend and vote at the meeting in respect of the number of shares registered n their name at
that relevant time  Changes to entries on the register of members after 11 00 am on 17 March 2008, or in the event that the meeting 15 adjourned to a
later time, on the register of members 48 hours before the time of any adjourned meeting, shall be disregarded i determining the nghts of any person to
attend and vote at the meeting

A member who I1s entitled to attend and vote at this meeting 1s entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend and, on a poll, vote on hisher behal{
Such a proxy need not also be a member of the Company

To be vahd a Proxy Card must be lodged with the Company's Registrar, Computershare Investor Services PLC, The Pavilions, Bridgwater Road, Bnstol
BS13 8FB at least 48 hours before the meeting A Proxy Card for use by shareholders ts enclosed with this Repart Completion of the Proxy Card wall not
prevent a shareholder from attending the meeting and voting in person

No Director has a contract of service with the Company
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Shareholder Information

Enquines
Shareholders should contact the following regarding quenes

Basic contact details, 12 change of address, joining the DRIP, queries re share and tax certificates and bank mandate
forms

Computershare (Company Registrar)
www computershare com/investor

Investors who hold ordinary shares in their own name can check their holdings on our Registrar's website
www computershare com Please note that to access this facility investors will need to quote the reference number shown
on their share ceruficate

Alternatively, by registering for the Investors’ Centre facility on Computershare’s website, investors can view details of all
their holdings for which Computershare 15 Registrar, as well as access additional facilities and documentation Please see
www computershare com/investor for further information

Shareholder Helphne

The Shareholder Helpline 1s available on UK business days between Monday and Fnday, 8 30 am to 5 pm The helpline
contains automated self-servce functionality which 1s available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week Using your Shareholder
Reference Number which 1s availlable on your share certificate or dividend tax voucher, our self-serice functionality will let
you do the following things

Automated Functions

— confirm the latest share price

- confirm your current share holding balance

— confirm payment hestory

— order a Change of Address, Dividend Bank Mandate or Stock Transfer Form

e-mall web quenes@computershare co uk
Tel 0870 703 0137 (Calls charged at national rate}

information on DRIP mechanism, share price movements, the share price discount and selling shares
F&C Asset Management plc (Company Secretary)

www baronsmeadvc3 co uk

e-mail rhonda nicoll@fandc com

Tel 0131718 1074 Fax Q131 225 2375

Any other points, 1 e valuations of underlying companies, asset allocations, dividend policies and the ynvestment process
ISIS EP LLP {Investment Manager)

WWW (SiSep com

Contans details of the team and some case studies of historical investments

e-mall david thorp@isisep com, prem mohan-raj@isisep com, margaret barff@isisep com

Tel Dawid Thorp 020 7506 5631, Prem Mohan Raj 020 7506 5640,
Margaret Barff 020 7506 5630

Shareholder communication

The Board has a policy of regular and open communication with shareholders based around quartery statutory reporting

Electronic communication has been introduced following new legislation in the 2006 Companies Act and the website,
www baronsmeadvct3 co uk, 1s currently being developed




Shareholder Information

Share Price

The Company's Shares are listed on the London Stock Exchange The mud-price of the Company’s Shares 1s given daily in
the Financial Times in the Investment Companies section of the London Share Service Share pnice information can also be
obtained from many financial websites

Trading Shares

The Company’s Shares can be bought and sold in the same way as any other quoted company on the London Stock
Exchange wia a stockbroker The market makers for Baronsmead VCT 3 plc are

® |andsbanki Secunties (formerly Teather & Greenwood) (320 7426 9000)

® LBS Warburg {020 7567 8000)

® Winterfloods (020 7621 0004)

Please call the Company Secretary if you or your adviser have any questions about this process

Finanaal Calendar

19 March 2008 Seventh Annual General Meeting

August 2008 Announcement of intenm results

August 2008 Posting of interim report

February 2009 Announcement of final results for year to 31 December 2008

Shareholdings
The shareholdings are analysed as follows

Ordtnary Shares C Shares
Percentage Percentage

of total  Number of  Percentage of total Number  Percentage

Number of  number of Ordinary Ordinary Number of  number of of of

Size of shareholding shareholders  shareholders Shares Shares shareholders  shareholders C Shares C Shares
Over 100,000 3 18 7,834,080 221 39 27 5,414,242 212
50,001-100,000 81 47 5,675923 160 70 48 4,466,937 175
25,001-50,000 245 143 8,545,637 241 140 96 5,068,719 198
10,001-25,000 522 303 8,650,525 244 a7 286 6,357,449 248
5,001-10,000 451 262 3,382,593 96 439 302 2,986,505 17
2,001-5,000 33 192 1,313911 37 350 240 1,274,949 50
1-2,000 60 35 30,852 01 1 01 1,530 -
Total 1,721 1000 35,433,529 100 ¢ 1,456 100 0 25,570,331 1000

Additional Information

The information provided In this report has been produced for shareholders to be informed of the actmties of the
Company during the penod it covers ISIS EP LLP does not give investment advice and the naming of companies in this
report is not a recommendation to deal in them

Baronsmead VCT 3 plc 1s managed by ISIS EP LLP which 1s Authorised and regulated by the FSA Past performance is not
necessanly a guide to future performance Stock markets and currency movements may cause the value of investments and
the income from them to fall as well as nse and investors may not get back the amount they onginally invested Where
investments are made in unquoted secunties and smaller companies, therr potential volatiity may increase the risk to the
value of, and the income from, the investment
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Directors Registrars and Transfer Office
Mark Cannon Brookes {Chairman)* Computershare Investor Services PLC
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Andrew Lumsdaine Karneyt
Gillian Nott OBE
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